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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Years Ended December 31 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Selected Statement of Operations Data
Revenue:
Service $30,406,636 $22,176,799 $18,852,925 $16,192,712 $14,408,221
Product 387,752 270,843 275,078 375,640 384,194
Total Revenue $30,794,388 $22,447,642 $19,128,003 $16,568,352 $14,792,415
Net Income $1,262,529 $932,436 $410,606 $570,700 $155,619
Net Income Per Share - Basic $0.14 $0.11 $0.05 $0.08 $0.02
Net Income Per Share - Diluted $0.13 $0.10 $0.05 £0.07 $0.02
Weighted Average Number of Common Shares:
Basic 8,948,328 8,452,435 7,903,267 7,455,038 7,188,294
Diluted 9,386,142 9,124,905 8,478,824 7,678,252 7,552,002
Selected Balance Sheet Data As of Dec 31
Total Assets $32.607,745 $26,595,336 $19,501,016 $17,936,580 $16,980,647
Long-Term Liabilities $7,233,964  $3,715,626 _ $1,877,416 __ $2,079,363 _ $2,069,454
Shareholders' Equity $21,345,190 $18,383,926 $15,277,899 $13,707,287 $12,559,257

MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s Common Stock is traded on NASDAQ (Symbol: AMAC). The high and low sales price of the Common
Stock, as furnished by NASDAQ, is shown for the fiscal years indicated.

2005 High Low
First Quarter $7.25 $4.90
Second Quarter 6.95 5.95
Third Quarter 7.87 5.96
Fourth Quarter 7.13 5.48
2006 High Low
First Quarter $6.31 $5.31
Second Quarter 7.29 5.95
Third Quarter 6.16 4,95
Fourth Quarter 6.90 5.56

As of March 20, 2007, there were 531 record holders of the Company’s Common Stock.

The Company did not pay dividends on its Common Stock during the two years ended Degember 31, 2006 and 2005

and does not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future,
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the annual percentage change in the cumulative total return on
the Company's Common Stock with the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Composite Market Index
(U.5. Companies) and the NASDAQ Healthcare Index for the period commencing on December 31, 2001

(1) and ending on December 31, 2006.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURNS
Among American Medical Alert Corp, The NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDAQ Health Care Index
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* $100 invested on 12/31/01 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.
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Jack Rhian
CEQ, President

Howard M. Siegel
Chairman of the Board

TO OUR CURRENT AND FUTURE SHAREHOLDERS

2006 was a year of transformation for AMAC. Today's AMAC is uniquely positioned as a health-
care communications company through the operation of two complementary communications
centric divisions. The value proposition for both the healthcare provider and shareholder is based
upon AMAC's carefully crafted portfolio of products and services designed to accommodate a
vast scope of healthcare communication needs. Through the pursuit of this vision, today’s
AMAC has harnessed the power of technology to diversify its service offerings not only to
improve life quality for the chronically ill and disabled, but also to fundamentally enhance health-
care communications between patient and provider. Working from the foundation of the
Company's core competency of providing PERS safety monitoring, today's AMAC currently
possesses a comprehensive array of personal safety, medication regimen management,
telehealth and telephony-based communication tools that can foster a customer relationship
with virtually every healthcare company, provider and facility.

AMAC's management team is focused on execution. The team goals are precise in their objec-
tives, use our carefully constructed portfolio of products and services to significantly grow the
Company in the months and years to come, achieve market leadership recognition, and continue
with unrelenting effort to refine our portfolio 1o meet the emerging needs of our customers.

Today's AMAC has unprecedented opportunity to achieve these objectives. In our Health Safety
and Monitoring Services (HSMS) division, one of the most notable opportunities now exists as a
result of the Company’s arrangement with Walgreen Co. Commencing this summer, Walgreens
and AMAC will launch a nationwide program to market PERS services under Waigreen's private
label, “Ready Response”. This national campaign is expected to increase product accessibility
through Walgreens 5600+ locations, build awareness of the benefits PERS provides to individuals
who wish to maintain independence at home, and dramatically increase the number of
subscribers utilizing the Company’s PERS product.

Today's AMAC is viewed by the healthcare community as forward thinking and responsive in
an ever evolving communications arena. Notwithstanding the effort and opportunity associated
with the Walgreen's program, management remains focused as well on executing on its signifi-
cant Health Safety Monitoring (HSMS) and Telephony Based Communication Services {TBCS)
opportunities including those arising from “Daytime Services" and PhoneScreen. PhoneScreen is
the most recent acquisition and is a wholly owned subsidiary specializing in the provision of
clinical trial recruitment, call center related quality assurance and post marketing surveillance.
AMAC has also completed two additional call center acquisitions in 2006 that will provide
market expansion opportunities. Our well planned diversification strategy of transitioning from a
single product offering to a diverse portfolio has yielded positive outcomes as we position
ourselves for future growth.

2006 was also a landmark year in that the Company's founder and Chief Executive Officer,
Howard M. Siegel, completed the process of transferring managerial control to his successor
after twenty-five years of steadfast leadership. Today's AMAC and its management team envision
the future and its possibilities clearly as a result of Howard Siegel's vision during his long and
dedicated tenure.

I would like to warmly thank you, our sharehotders, for your belief in our performance and in the
achievements of our employees. Through the work and leadership of our management team
and board of directors, AMAC delivered solid financial results in 2006. AMAC is in an excellent
position to capitalize on growing demand for our robust product portfolic that addresses significant
unmet health and communication needs. 2007 and beyond is expected to be an exciting time for
AMAC in terms of growth and expansion. Our goal is to continue to validate your confidence in
us in the future.

Sincerely yours,

}utﬂ.;\.

Jack Rhian
Chief Executive Officer and President
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

GENERAL

American Medical Alert Corporation ("AMAC" or the "Company") is a corporation incorporated under the
laws of the State of New York in 1981, As used herein, the term "AMAC" or “Company" means, unless the
context requires otherwise, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, HC) Acquisition Corp., LMA
Acquisition Corp., Safe Com, Inc., North Shore Answering Services, Answer Connecticut Acquisition Corp.,
MD OnCall Acquisition Carp. and American Mediconnect Acquisition Corp.

AMAC is a healthcare communications company, with three reporting segments as of December 31, 2006:
{i) Health and Safety Monitoring Systems ("HSMS") (i) Telephony Based Communication Services {" TBCS"),
and (iii) Pharmacy Security Monitoring Systems (“SafeCom"). AMAC's objective is to achieve higher levels of
capital efficient profitable growth. To accomplish this, the Company's management operates its business
consistent with certain strategic principles to leverage various healthcare communication and monitoring
services through centralized call centers to enhance and diversify the Company's revenue stream and earn-
ing capacity. The Company is committed to attaining leadership positions in its market segments through
the incorporation of monitored appliances and systems and the development of innovative call center
solutions.

The Company’s financial madel is the generation of monthly recurring revenues (MRR). Under this model,
each operating division generates a prescribed monthly fee for services and equipment rendered throughout
the duration of the service agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2006, approximately 96% of the
Company’s revenue was generated from MRR. The remaining 4% was derived from one time installation
charges and product sales.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Health and Safety Monitoring Systems
This operating segment focuses an the marketing of health monitoring system and monitoring services to
enhance healthcare delivery and provide 24/7 medical emergency communications.

Personal Emergency Response Systems ("PERS")

Marketed primarily as the VoiceCare® System, PERS is the Company’s core product and service offering. The
system consists of a console unit and a wireless transmitter generally worn as a pendant or on the wrist by
the subscriber. In the event of an emergency, the client is able to summeon immediate assistance via the two-
way voice system that connects their home telephone with the Company’s Response Center.

The PERS product line is distributed to the subscriber base through four primary marketing channels:
AMAC's Private Pay Program; Third Party Reimbursed Programs; the Distributor Network, made up of Direct
Service Providers, {"DSPs"); and the Purchase and Monitoring Program (*PMP*"), Under the Private Pay and
Third Party Reimbursed Programs, AMAC provides all aspects of service on behalf of subscribers while DSPs
and PMPs maintain responsibility for management of subscribers in their program.

Private Pay Program: Individuals from the community can access the VoiceCare system through AMAC’s
corparate sales office, via any regional office or by mail order. AMAC has referral arrangements with home
care agencies and case managers throughout the United States who introduce and recommend VoiceCare
to clients and generate an ongoing source of new consumer interest.

In February of 2007, the Company announced it had entered inte an exclusive relationship with Walgreen
Co. to provide the Company's flagship personal emergency response systems under the Walgreen brand.
Walgreens Ready Response™ Medical Alert system is currently being offered at Walgreens stores in selected
markets and on a national scale through Walgreen’s website and will be offered in all Walgreen stores in the
United States and Puerto Rico beginning June, 2007. The Company believes the Walgreen relationship will
provide a significant opportunity for AMAC to increase its PERS market share through Walgreen's direct to
consumer distribution channel.

Third Party Reimbursed Programs: The Company’s PERS are on the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
{"CMS™) list of approved monitoring devices. Payment far PERS equipment and manitoring services is avail-
able through various state Medicaid Home and Community Based Services waivers programs and other
Medicaid funded home care services programs. AMAC believes that the use of home care as an alternative
to institutional care will continue to increase, representing an ongoing opportunity for broader use of the
Company’s current and future products. In 2006, 13% of AMAC's revenue was derived from contracts with
Medicaid reimbursed programs for PERS services. These programs operate under a rental and monitoring
agreement under which there is an installation and monthly service fee per subscriber billed to the appro-
priate agency.
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS continued

Distributor Network: AMAC has developed a network of Direct Service Providers, (*DSPs") to establish
and manage VoiceCare programs in their local communities. DSPs may be a hospital system, home health
care agency, hospice, senior living facility, durable medical equipment vendor or one of several other types
of entities that interact with elderly, infirm or disabled individuals.

In 2004, AMAC introduced ProviderLink, a secure PERS management web tool for DSPs to directly access
and manage their PERS programs from any internet ready computer. During 2005 the Company recognized
certain operational efficiencies as a result of its customers migrating to a paper-light program management
toal. The Company plans on expanding the capabilities of this provider tool in 2007 to further support DSP
growth activities.

Purchase and Monitoring Program (*PMP"): AMAC's VoiceCare system is also utilized by assisted living
and senior housing facilities to offer additional protection to efderly residents. Facilities operate under a PMP
Agreement whereby all necessary equipment is purchased. The facility provides primary monitoring for their
residents and some employ AMAC's ERC to serve as their back-up center. In 2006 the Company released
Resilink, an enhanced software package for its facility monitoring platform. The software supports seniar
living facility personnel in managing residential monitoring activities. Enhancements include new reporting
capabilities, detailed identification of PERS signals, and support utilities. Additionally, in 2007, the Company
has commenced R&D related to improving its facility- based PERS product hardware offerings. The Company
anticipates commercialization of its new, facility-based technology offering during the third quarter of 2007,

MED-TIME®

Complementary to the Company's PERS is the MED-TIME device, an electronic medication reminder and
dispensing unit marketed under an exclusive licensing, manufacturing and distribution agreement which
began in 1999, This agreement originates from PharmaCell AB, a Swedish company, with licensing rights
extending throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico. The initial term of the agreement was five
years requiring the Company to achieve certain purchase minimums to maintain exclusivity. Thereafter, the
agreement converted to an evergreen with annual purchase minimums of 1,500 units. The Company has
met all the minimums with PharmaCell to date and continues to maintain exclusivity. MED-TIME helps to
ensure adherence to prescribed therapeutic medication regimens and thus reduces healthcare expenditures
related to noncompliance. MED-TIME is a valuable asset to visually handicapped, medically or mentaily
challenged patients and as well as patients on complex daily medication regimens. MED-TIME contains a
tray with twenty-eight compartments. At preprogrammed times, one to four times a day, the dispenser
reminds the client to access and take the medication. The reminder signal for the stand-alone device
remains active for the lesser of thirty minutes or until the medication is remaved from the device.
Compliance with the medication regimen automatically resets the device. Non-adherence to medication
regimens leads to 10 to 25 percent of hospital and nursing home admissions each year, and the Company
believes there are additional opportunities to support the healthcare community caregivers in addressing this
issue. In addition to the Med-Time product, the Company is currently engaged in the development of a next
generation med-management appliance enhanced with monitoring features to expand its product offering
to address this critical component of patient care.

Med-Time is marketed and distributed through all four of AMAC's primary channels.

TELEPHONY BASED COMMUNICATION SERVICES ("TBCS")

The Company provides TBCS to physicians, hospitals, home care, hospice and other healthcare arganiza-
tions at multiple communication centers under the brand names H-LINK® OnCall, Live Message America
("LMA™), North Shore {(*NSAS"), Answer Connecticut {("ACT"), MD OnCall Acquisition Corp. ("MD
OncCall") and American Mediconnect Acquisition Corp. ("AMI“) which includes the brands American
Mediconnect and PhoneScreen. At 2006 year end, the TBCS segment accounted for 48% of the Company’s
gross revenue and is its fastest growing segment.

Services offered by TBCS include message desk services, appeintment making, referral services, voice-mail
and wireless communications. As part of our business development strategy, management continues to
employ the most advanced telephony technology and information systems to develop value added cus-
fomizable services 10 maximize staffing and increase revenue. In addition to technology, a critical component
tor successtul expansion is a professionally trained call agent staff. The Company has allocated additional
resources to enhance contact agent training and staff development to support TBCS%S expansion efforts,
new communication technalogy, and continuous quality control.
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS continued

Traditionally, the primary focus of TBCS was to manage clinically-urgent and time-sensitive after-hours calls.
In addition to the core telephone answering services provided, TBCS markets daytime services solutions as
H-LINK "Interactive Intelligence Center". This service provides healthcare organizations with solutions to
manage patient/provider interactions that maximize service performance, increase productivity, and enhance
quality contral with fee schedules that are materially less than existing in-sourced solutions.

The TBCS service line is marketed and distributed to four primary channels: Individual and muttiple physi-
cian,; integrated hospital networks, home care agencies and healthcare group purchasing organizations.

Over the last twelve months several significant healthcare organizations have executed agreements with the
Company to provide daytime solutions and services. TBCS daytime services are geared primarily towards
hospitals and managed care organizations. The MRR associated with these contracts significantly exceed the
average MRR of traditional answering service clients and is now providing significant increases within this
reporting segment. Management believes its daytime services will continue to contribute material increases
in revenue and earnings throughout 2007 as the efficacy of these programs become more fully validated
and documented.

In December 2006 the Company acquired PhoneScreen, Inc. (“PhoneScreen”). PhoneScreen is a company
founded 15 years ago that specializes in the recruitment of patients for clinical trials. PhoneScreen’s cus-
tomers are pharmaceutical companies and Contract Research Organizations (CRO)} CRO' are organizations
that offer pharmaceutical companies and medical entities a wide range of pharmaceutical research services
which include the development and execution of clinical trials.

There are two components of this business; the first aspect of the business consists of traditional call center
functions. Advertisements are placed to recruit participants who are afflicted with a particular ailment, con-
dition or symptom. Those individuals responding to the ad are directed to call a toll free number.
PhoneScreen personnel receive those calls and screen the caller based on a set of directives provided by the
CRO or pharmaceutical company. Callers who meet the criteria are forwarded to the medical entity for final
clinical screening and possible acceptance into the clinical trial. The second portion of this business model
relates to developing the screening criteria, granular reporting, QA compliance and trend analysis.

The Company has completed ten acquisitions to date. For 2007, the Company will primarily focus on grow-
ing this segment through sales and marketing efforts.

TELEHEALTH/DISEASE MANAGEMENT MONITORING ("TH/DMM")

The Company has made a significant investment in its initial endeavors in the disease management moni-
toring market. This market focuses on various technotogies to permit chronic disease management through
remote patient monitoring. During the last several years, the Company has learned how this market func-
tions and has explored a variety of methods of making a meaningful entry into this market. The Company
has also experienced technological difficulties with the products provided by its primary vendor and is taking
steps to address the economic and technical issues posed by this. The Company continues to focus efforts
on other alternatives to exploit this promising market. The Company believes that it is unigquely positioned
to be successful in this market, notwithstanding the early difficulties it has experienced.

SAFECOM, INC. - PHARMACY - SECURITY MONITORING SYSTEMS

SafeCom, Inc. offers monitoring technology products and safety monitoring to drug stores, 24-hour
pharmacies and national and regional retailers. In 2006, SafeCom represented 2% of the Company's
gross revenue. Under the Silent Partner brand, the Company provides safety, environmental and device
functionality monitoring systems and services integrating key aspects of audio technology and access
control systems. The Silent Partner System functions by transmitting emergency signals to the moritoring
center, where trained personnel scan audio from microphones placed in an environment to pinpoint the
exact location of duress, monitor and record the event, and dispatch local law enforcement. This solution
helps minimize employee risk, reduces loss and assists law enforcement agencies in identification and appre-
hension. SafeCom device functionality monitaring screens passive signals such as, loss of power to
DVR/NCR, tape replacement and non-record status.
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS continued

Production/Purchasing

The Company outsources the manufacturing and final assembly of its core product lines. Sources are
selected through competitive bids, past performance and accessibility to the engineering process. Although
the Company currently maintains favorable relationships with its subcontractors, the Company believes that,
in the event any such relationship were to be terminated, the Company would be able to engage the
services of alternative subcontractors as required to fulfill its needs without any material adverse effect to
the Company’s operations. With the exception of several proprietary components, which are manufactured
to the Company's specifications, the manufacturing of the Company’s product lines requires the use of
generally available electronic components and hardware. Product and technology currently provided by
HHN related to the Company's telehealth business are considered a sole source supply arrangement, and
the Company could require the use of significant funds and resources in the event HHN did not continue to
provide these supplies to the Company. The Company has a long term agreement with HHN, and does not
anticipate that HHN will be unable to meet its future supply commitments As noted earlier, the Company
has had technology concerns with the HHN products and is aitempting to negotiate a corrective action plan
with HHN to improve the situation.

COMMUNICATIONS CENTERS

As of March 2007, The Company operates eight (8) call centers:

= Long Island City, New York

The Company’s primary communications center is located at 36-36 33rd Street, Long Island City, New
York. In April 2003, the Company opened a one-hundred seat state-of-the-art call center to centralize the
full scope of communication services offered by AMAC. The call center was built with system-wide redun-
dancy and can accommodate growth up to three (3) times its current volume. Phone service to the call
center is provided by three separate carriers and is configured to provide continuous service in the event
of disruption. Phone circuit eniry to the building is provided through a reinforced steel conduit built to UL
Ceniral Station Standards. The call center’s electricity supply is maintained by a comprehensive, three
tiered back-up system. The system consists of dual power supplies at the telephone switch, an uninter-
ruptible power supply {"UPS") and a diesel generator.

The Company's call center is staffed by full time Information System ("1S") professionals charged with the
responsibility to maintain, refine and report on all data and communications system requirements. Critical
systems are equipped with secure remote access and diagnostic abilities, enabling offsite as well as on-site
access 1o IS systern support 24/7.

+ Audubon, New Jersey

This site serves as the call center for telephone answering services provided by the Company’s LMA
subsidiary and services the Company’s Southern New Jersey and Philadelphia telephone answering service
customer hase. Upon completion of an upgrade in 2008, this center is compatible with the Long Island
City, New York call center. This upgrade allows for significant additional service capability, providing even-
tuat redundancy and overflow as well as single site operational capability during selected time
periods to further realize operational efficiencies.

* Port Jefferson, New York
This site serves as the call center for telephone answering services provided by the Company’s NSAS
subsidiary and services the Caompany's Long Island TBCS customer base.

+ Newington, Connecticut

This site serves as the one of the two call centers for telephone answering services provided by the
Company's ACT subsidiary and services the Company’s Connecticut TBCS customer base. This site also
serves as the back-up center for the Company’s PERS Emergency Response Center and Client Services.

» Springfield, Massachusetts
This site serves as the one of the two call centers for telephone answering services provided by the
Company's ACT subsidiary and services the Company's Massachusetts TBCS customer base.

« Cranston, Rhode Island
This site serves as the call center for telephone answering services provided by the MD OnCall subsidiary
and services the Company's Rhode island TBCS customer base.

* Rockville, Maryland
This site serves as the call center for telephone answering services provided by MD GnCall subsidiary and
services the Company’s Maryland TBCS customer base.

* Chicago, lllinois
This site serves as the call center for telephone answering services provided by the Company’s AMI
subsidiary, the latest TBCS acquisition and services the Company's lllinois TBCS customer base.
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS continued

MARKETING/CUSTOMERS

The Company markets its portfolioc of healthcare communication services and monitoring devices
to integrated hospital systems, home healthcare providers, community service organizations, government
agencies, third party insurers, as well as private pay clients. The Campany believes there are several
compelling industry and population trends that will continue to drive utilization of its products and services.
Within our HSMS segment, the aging population and percentage of individuals with chronic disease
conditions will continue to provide significant opportunity to utilize our manitoring solutions to achieve cost
control and improve quality of life.

With respect to our TBCS business division, we continue to observe increased opportunity with integrated
haspital systems and regional home health agencies. Specifically, healthcare organizations are seeking to
achieve cost savings by consolidating services through single source vendor relationships. The Company’s
advanced telephony, call center infrastructure and specialization in healthcare, uniquely positions the
Company to effectively compete for new business.

While the Company generates organic growth in each reporting segment, customer retention is equally
important. The Company’s customer service, provider relations and accounts services team focus on account
maintenance and business development from existing customers.

The Company’s products and services may be acquired on a single line or bundled basis and are highty com-
plementary. As demand for our products and services continue to develop, the Company will add additional
sales and marketing personnel to enhance our naticnal presence thraughout its respective businesses.

COMPETITION
In each business segment, AMAC faces competition, both in price and service from national, regional and
local service providers of PERS, TH/DMM, telephone answering service and security monitoring systems.
Price, quality of services and, in some cases, convenience is generally the primary competitive elements in
each segment.

HSMS

The Company’s competition within the HSMS segment includes manufacturers, distributers and providers
of personal emergency response equipment and services, disease management and biometric carve out
companies and a small number of security companies. The Company's market research estimates that
approximately 20-30 companies are providers of competitive PERS products; 15-20 companies are
providers of TH/DMM and 5-10 companies are providers of medication management systems.

We believe PERS competitors serve in aggregate approximately 800,000 individuals under the PERS
product line. As of December 31, 2006, AMAC monitored approximately 55,000 subscribers. Because
TH/DMM is a new field of healthcare services, clear data of actual number of users is unavailable. Some
of the Company's competitors may have more extensive manufacturing and marketing capabilities as
well as greater financial, technological and personnel resources. The Company’s competition focuses its
marketing and sales efforts in the following areas: hospitals, home care providers, physicians, ambulance
companies, medical equipment suppliers, state social services agencies, health maintenance organiza-
tions, and directly to consumers.

We believe the competitive factors when choosing a HSMS provider include the quality of monitoring
services, product flexibility and reliability, and customer support. The Company believes it competes
favorably with respect to each of these factors. The Company believes it will continue to compete com-
petitively by creating technological enhancements to the care systems that are expected to establish
meaningful differentiation from its competitors.

TBCS

The Company believes that it is one of the larger medical-specific telephone answering service providers
competing with more than 3,300 call centers across the United States, of which fewer than 10 percent
are medical-only. The Company considers its scope of services more diverse than those of traditional sole
proprietorships that make up the greatest portion of the competitive landscape. While many TBCS orga-
nizations compete for after-hours business, AMAC is offering new services catering to daytime work for
large health systems and believes this application is scalable nationwide.
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS continued

SafeCom

The SafeCom business is a unique application facused on a niche segment within the security applications
industry. Competitors in the security industry include international, national, regional and local providers
of residential and commercial security applications, central station monitoring companies and independent
electronic security manufacturers. The security industry is highly competitive and represents approximately
$19-23 billion dollar in total revenue. It is not the Company’s intention to compete in the traditional secu-
rity monitoring space; rather, the Company is establishing alternative uses for its PERS monitoring system.
The application utilized by SafeCom is healthcare based and is another method of leveraging the core
system. We believe this strategy will allow AMAC to continue to effectively compete and profit from this
segment and build market share.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT SEGMENTS
Financial information about the Company's reporting segments can be found in Note 12 to the financial
statements included as part of this Annual Report, beginning on page 43.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market Risk Disclosure

The Company does not hold market risk-sensitive trading instruments, nor does it use financial instruments
for trading purposes. Except as disclosed below in this item, all sales, operating items and balance sheet
data are denominated in U.S. dollars; therefore, the Company has no significant foreign currency exchange
rate risk.

In the ordinary course of its business the Company enters into commitments ta purchase raw materials and
finished goods over a period of time, generally six months to one year, at contracted prices. At December
31, 2006 these future commitments were not at prices in excess of current market, or in quantities in excess
of normal requirements. The Company does not utilize derivative contracts either to hedge existing risks or
for speculative purposes.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates primarily through our financing activities.
Interest on our outstanding balances on our term loan and revolving credit line under our credit facility
accrues at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.00% and LIBOR plus 1.75%, respectively. Our ability to carry out our busi-
ness plan to finance future working capital requirements and acquisitions of TBCS businesses may be
impacted if the cost of carrying debt fluctuates to the point where it becomes a burden on our resources.

American Medical Alert Corp. and Subsidiaries
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS{S OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS CF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis provides information which management believes is relevant to an
assessment and understanding of the Company’s operations and financial condition. This discussion should
be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes hereto.

Statemments contained in this Annual Report include "forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act, including, in particular and without
limitation, statements contained herein under the headings "Description of Business" and "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Forward-looking statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which could cause the Company’s actual
results, performance and achievements, whether expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements,
not to occur or be realized. These include uncertainties relating to government regulation, technological
changes, our contract with the City of New York, costs related to ongoing FCC remediation efforts, our
expansion plans and product liability risks. Such forward-fooking statements generally are based upon the
Company’s best estimates of future results, performance or achievement, based upon current conditions
and the most recent resufts of operations. Forward-fooking statements may be identified by the use of
forward-looking terminology such as "may. " "will " “expect, " "believe," “estimate," "anticipate," “continue"
or similar terms, variations of those terms or the negative of those terms.

You should carefully consider such risks, uncertainties and other information, disclosures and discussions
which contain cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause actual resuits to differ
materiafly from those provided in the forward-fooking statements. Readers should carefully review the risk
factors described, and any other cautionary statements confained, in our Annual Report on Form
10-K. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-locking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

OVERVIEW

The Company’s primary business is the provision of healthcare communication services through (1) the
development, marketing and monitoring of health and safety monitoring systems ("HSMS") that include
personal emergency response systems, telehealth/disease management monitoring systems, medication
management systems and pharmacy security monitoring systems; (2) telephony based communication
services and solutions primarily for the healthcare community ("TBCS"). The Company’s products and
services are primarily marketed to the healthcare community, including home care, durable medical equip-
ment, medical facility, hospice, pharmacy, managed care and other healthcare oriented organizations.
The Company also offers certain products and services directly to consumers. Until 2000, the Company’s
principal business was the marketing of personal emergency response systems ("PERS"), a device that
allows a patient to signal an emergency response center for help in the event of a debilitating illness or
accident. The Company provides PERS nationwide to private pay customers, Medicaid programs as well as
ta healthcare related entities. In 2003, the Company initiated a relationship with a large, west coast man-
aged care organization that recognized the vafue associated with provisioning PERS to its senior population
and contracted AMAC ta roll out its PERS product to its subscribers. Today, the number of PERS units in
service under that program has mare than doubled and continues to expand throughout the west coast. In
February of 2007, the Company announced it had entered into an exclusive relationship with Walgreen Co.
to provide the Company's flagship personal emergency response systems under the Walgreen brand.
Walgreens Ready Response™ Medical Alert system is currently being offered at Walgreens stores in selected
markets and on a national scale through Walgreen’s website. The Company believes the Walgreen relation-
ship will provide a significant oppaortunity for AMAC to increase its PERS market share through Walgreen's
direct to consumer distribution channel.

in 2001, the Company entered the emerging telehealth market, an industry in its embryonic stage,
recognizing the opportunity to provide new monitoring technologies to assist healthcare professionals in
home-based, health management activities. The Company has made a significant investment in its initial
endeavors in the disease management monitaring market. This market focuses on various technologies to
permit chronic disease management through remote patient monitoring. During the last several years, the
Company has learned how this market functions and has explored a variety of methods of making a mean-
ingful entry into this market. The Company has also experienced technological difficulties with the products
provided by its primary vendor and is taking steps to address the issues posed by this. The Company contin-
ues to focus efforts on other alternatives to exploit this promising market. The Company believes that it is
uniquely positioned to be successful in this market.
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Beginning in 2000, the Company began a program of product diversification and customer base expansicn
to decrease its reliance on a single product line by marketing complementary call center and moenitoring
services to the healthcare community.

The Company diversified its products/service mix to include telephony based communication services
("TBCS") for professionals in the healthcare community. The rationale to enter this segment had several
components. These include targeting existing customer relationships, leveraging existing infrastructure capa-
bility, and establishing an additional significant revenue source. The Company’s entry into the TBCS market
was accomplished initially through acquisition and later through internally generated sales growth coupled
with acquisitions. The TBCS segment accounted for 48% of the Company's revenues in 2006,

The Company has since further expanded its communication infrastructure and capacity and now operates
a total of eight communication centers in Long Island City and Port Jefferson, New York, New Jersey,
Maryland, Connecticut, Massachusetts, Rhode Island and lllinois.

In December 2006 the Company acquired PhoneScreen, Inc ("PhoneScreen”). PhoneScreen is a company
founded 15 years ago that specializes in the recruitment of patients for clinical trials. PhoneScreen’s
customers are pharmaceutical companies and Contract Research Organizatians ("CRO"). CRC's are
organizations that offer pharmaceuticsl companies and medical entities a wide range of pharmaceutical
research services which include the development and execution of clinical trials.

The Company believes it has identified other communication needs as expressed by the expanded
TBCS client base. In response to these expressed needs, the Company has developed specialized healthcare
communication solutions. These sclutions are creating additional opportunities for long-term revenue
enhancement. The Company has broadened its service offerings and is in the process of significantly
expanding the TBCS reporting segment.

The Company continues to view its two core business segments, HSMS and TBCS, as the main contributars
to the Company’s cash flow from operations.

The Company believes that the overall mix of cash flow generating businesses from PERS and TBCS,
combined with its emphasis on developing products and services in the telehealth field, provides the correct
blend of stability and growth opportunity. The Company believes this strategy will enable it to maintain
and increase its role in the healthcare communications field.

American Medical Alert Corp. and Subsidiaries

.




12

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION continued

Components of Statements of Income by Qperating Segment

The following table shows the components of the Statement of Income for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004.

In thousands {(000's) Year Ended Dec 31
2006 % 2005 % 2004 %
Revenue
HSMS 15,498 | 50% 14,510 | 65% 13,266 | 69%
TBCS 14,749 | 48% 7,470 | 33% 5487 | 29%
SafeCom 547 2% 468 2% 375 2%
Total Revenues 30,794 |100% $22,448 |100% 19,128 [100%
Cost of Service & Goods Sold
HSMS 7,143 | 46% 6,617 | 46% 6,737 | 51%
TBCS 7,276 49% 3,991 | 53% 2827 | 52%
SafeCom 255 | 47% 264 | 56% 209 | 56%
Total Cost of Services & Goods Sold 14,674 | 48% 10,872 | 48% 9773 | 51%
Gross Profit
H5MS 8,355 54% 7,893 | 54% 6,529 | 49%
TBCS 7,473 51% 3,479 | 47% 2,660 | 48%
SafeCom 292 | 53% 204 | 44% 166 | 44%
Total Gross Profit 16,120 52% 11,576 | 52% 9,355 | 49%
Selling, General & Administrative 14,173 | 46% 10,198 | 45% 8,845 | 46%
Interest Expense 394 1% 53 0% 58 | 0%
Other Income (578) | )% {473) | (2)% (357) | (2)%
Income before Income Taxes 2,132 7% 1,798 | 8% 809 | 4%
Provision for Income Taxes 869 866 348
Net Income 1,263 932 461

Note: The percentages for Cost of Services and Goods Sold and Gross Profit are calculated based on a
percentage of revenue

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:

The Company has three distinct operating business segments, which are HSMS, TBCS and Safe Com. The
HSMS and TBCS are the two significant segments which generate and produce approximately 98% of the
Company's revenue and net income, while Safe Com has a minimal impact on these areas; therefore, the
operations of Safe Com are not further analyzed below.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

Revenues:

HSMS

Revenues, which consist primarily of monthly rental revenues, increased approximately $988,000, or 7%,
for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared ta the same pericd in 2005. The increase is primarily
attributed to:

The Company continues to experience growth primarily in its existing customer base. The largest growth
continues to be as a result of an agreement with a west coast management organization, which was exe-
cuted in Novernber 2003. The number of Personal Emergency Response Systems (“PERS"} in service under
this agreement has more than doubled since its inception and has resulted in approximately $335,000
more revenue jn 2006 as compared to 2005. The Company anticipates that the growth in this account
will continue through 2007.

In 2004, the Company initiated and executed a new agreement with a home healthcare agency whereby
PERS were placed online. Since inception, this account has grown to approximately 1,800 subscribers and
accounted for an approximate $105,000 increase in revenue during 2006 as compared to the prior year.

in the second half of 2006, the Company increased its product sales to retirement communities. During
2006, the Company developed new software and is now selling this in conjunction with hardware to
retirement communities for the purpose of monitoring their residents. This resulted in approximately a
$75,000 increase in product sales in 2006 as compared to the prior year. The Company anticipates that in
2007 it will continue to grow its revenue with the sale of these products to retirement communities.
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The remaining increase in revenue is from the execution of other new agreements as well as the acquisition
of certain subscriber bases from companies which were providing the PERS service. The Company antici-
pates that it will continue to grow its subscriber base and corresponding revenue through its continued sales
and marketing efforts. Additionally, in 2007, the Company entered into an exclusive arrangement with
Walgreens to provide the Company’s PERS product which they believe will positively impact the revenues
generated from the HSMS services being provided directly to the consumer.

TBCS
The increase in revenues of approximately $7,279,000, or 97%, for the year ended December 31, 2006 as
compared to 2005 was primarily due to the following:

During 2006 and the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company purchased the assets of four separate tele-
phone answering service businesses which resulted in additional revenue for the year ended December
31, 2006, as compared to the same period in 2005, of approximately $6,699,000. The acquisitions were
as follows:

« In October 2005, the Company purchased the assets of North Shore Answering Secvice ("NSAS®). As a
result of this acquisition, the Company realized approximately $1,540,000 of greater revenue in 2006 as
compared to the same period in 2005. The Company believes the acquisition of NSAS will help facilitate
its growth within the Long Island/New York geographical area.

» In December 2005, the Company purchased the assets of Answer Connecticut, Inc. {("ACT"). As a result
of this acquisition, the Company realized approximately $2,830,000 of greater revenue in 2006 as
compared to the same period in 2005. The Company believes this acquisition will help facilitate its
expansion into the Northeast geographical area.

* In March 2006, the Company purchased the assets of Capitol Medical, Inc. and Rhode Island Medical
Bureau (*“MD OnCall"}. As a result of this acquisition, the Company realized approximately $2,230,000
of revenue in 2006. The Company believes this acquisition will further facilitate its expansion into the
Northeast geographical area.

e in December 2006, the Company purchased the assets of American Mediconnect, Inc. and
PhoneScreen, Inc. ("AMI"). As a result of this acquisition, the Company realized approximately $99,000
of revenue in 2006.

The Company continued to experience revenue growth within its existing telephone answering service
businesses (acquired prior to 2005} which resulted in approximately $470,000 of increased revenue in
2006, as compared to 2005. This growth is primarily due to the execution of new agreements with
healthcare and hospital organizations as a result of daytime communication service offerings. The
Company has experienced strong growth in the daytime communication service offerings and anticipates
that it will continue to grow this business segment with further expansion into healthcare and hospital
organizations. This growth was partialty offset by a price reduction granted to one of its large physician
based customers.

Looking at 2007 with regard to the TBCS segment, the Company plans on shifting its focus from an
acquisition driven growth strategy, to one that will place primary emphasis on internally driven business
development efforts.

Costs Related to Services and Goods Sold:

HSMS
Costs related to services and goods increased by approximately $526,000 for the year ended Decermber 31,
2006 as compared to the same period in 2005, an increase of 8%, primarily due to the following:

During 2006, the Company hired a Manager of Engineering and Fulfillment at a rate of $95,000
per annum. In addition, during the second quarter of 2006, the Company moved its fulfillment and ware-
house distribution center from Mt. Laurel, New Jersey into its Long Island City facility. As part of this
process, the Company hired personnel for the LIC location while winding down operatians in Mt. Laurel
and, therefore incurred additional payroll costs while transitioning this change in location. As part of this
transition, the Company also took the upgrade and repairs of its PERS units in-house, which required the
Company to hire additional employees. These items accounted for approximately $210,000 of increased
costs as compared to the same period in the prior year. The Company believes that it will realize cost
efficiencies as a result of it overall consolidation initiative,
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION continued

The relocation of the Company's fulfillment and warehouse distribution center inte Long Island City
resulted in increased rent expense due to the Company leasing more space, paying a higher rate per
square foot for rent as well as incurring overlapping rents while transitioning from one facility to the
other. The increase in expense, as compared to 2005, was approximately $150,000. As part of this move,
the Company did transition the upgrades and repairs performed by outside third parties to in-house, The
Company believes this relocation was necessary as part of its strategy to consolidate some of its facilities
relating to the HSMS segment.

During 2005 and intc 2006, the Company has increased the number of perscnnel working in its
Emergency Response Center ("ERC") department which accounted for increased costs of approximately
$145,000 in 2006 as compared to the same period in 2005. The Company hired additional personnel due
to the increased velume of calls which is directly correlated to the increased subscriber base. The
Company believes it currently has the appropriate number of personnel to handle the increased call volume.

TBCS
Costs related to services and goods increased by approximately $3,285,000 for the year ended December
31, 2006 as compared to the same period in 2005, an increase of 82%, primarily due to the following:

With the continued increase in business in its existing telephone answering services (acquired prior to
2005), specifically in its daytime answering service, the Company continued to hire additional telephone
answering service supervisors and operators in its Long Island City location, especially in the second half
of 2005 as a result of the Company executing agreements with hospital arganizations throughout 2005 and
into 2006. In addition, in July 2005 the Company initiated a pay rate increase to all its supervisors and
operators in an effort to stabilize employee tenure with the Company. These personnel additions along with
general pay rate increases and associated payroll taxes has accounted for approximately $430,000 of
increased costs as compared to the same period in 2005. As the Company continues 1o grow its customer
base and revenues, it will continue to evaluate personnel levels and determine if additional personnel are
necessary.

During 2006 and the fourth quarter of 2005, as discussed above, the Company purchased the assets of
four separate telephone answering service businesses which resulted in additional costs related to sales
for the year ended December 31, 2006, as compared to the same period in 2005 of approximately
$2,685,000. The costs related to sales in regard to the acquisitions were as follows: NSAS - $542,000;
ACT - $1,148,000, MD OnCall - 952,000 and AMI - $43,000.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by approximately $3,975,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2006 as compared to the same period in 2005, an increase of 39%. The increase is primarily
attributable to the following:

The Company incurred approximately $2,761,000 of additional selling, general and administrative
expenses, as compared to the same period in 2005, as a result of the acquisition of four telephone
answering service businesses during 2006 and the fourth quarter of 2005. The largest expenses relate to
salaries and related payroll taxes and amortization relating to customer lists and non-compete agreements.

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company relocated its accounting department from its
QOceanside, New York focation to its Long Island City, New York facility. As part of this process, the
Company hired personnel for the LIC location while winding down cperations in Oceanside and, there-
fore incurred additional payroll costs while transitioning this change in location. These items along with
general rate increases for existing personnel accounted for approximately $154,000 of increased payroll
and associated payroll tax costs as compared to the same period in the priar year. The Company believes
the hiring of these employees was necessary to handle the increased workload.

In the third quarter of 20086, the Company expanded its health benefit options to its employees. As a
result of these expanded benefits, the Company experienced an increase in the number of employees
participating in these plans. This, along with increased benefits costs, resulted in approximately a
$136,000 increase as compared to the same period in the prior year. Although the Company believed this
would reduce employee turnover, it has only had a minimal impact on the rate of employee turnover. The
Company will continue to monitor this rate of turnover and evaluate its health benefit offerings.
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Certain executives entered into new employment agreements whereby effective January 1, 2006 their
salaries were increased and they received certain stock grants. As a result of these new agreements, the
Company recorded approximately $258,000 of additional compensation expense, including payroll taxes,
as compared to the same period in 2005.

The Company was required to pay additional commissions to sales personnel of approximately $197,000
during 2006 as compared to 2005. This is primarily a result of the Company executing new agreements
with healthcare and hospital organizations in 2006 in its TBCS segment.

There were other increases in selling, general and administrative expenses which arose out of the normal
course of business such as consulting expense, sales and marketing salaries and travel and entertainment
expense which were partially offset by decreases in amortization expense.

Interest Expense:

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $394,000 and
$53,000, respectively. The increase was primarily due to the Company borrowing additional funds in
December 2005 of $2,550,000 and in March 2006 of $2,500,000 for the purpase of financing its acquisi-
tions of ACT and MD OnCall, respectively. Interest rate increases in 2006 also have contributed to the
increase. In December 2006, the Company borrowed an additional $1,600,000 to fund the acquisition of AMI.

Other Income:

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $578,000 and
$473,000, respectively. Other Income for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 includes a
Relocation and Employment Assistance Program ("REAP") credit in the approximate amounts of $458,000
and $392,000, respectively. In connection with the relocation of certain operations to Long Island City, New
York in April 2003, the Company became eligible for the REAP credit which is based upon the number of
employees relocated to this designated REAP area. The REAP is in effect for a twelve year period; during the
first five years the Company will be refunded the full amount of the eligible credit and, thereafter, the
benefit will be available only as a credit against New York City income taxes.

Income Before Provision for Income Taxes:

The Company’s income before provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2006 was
approximately $2,132,000 as compared to $1,798,000 for the same period in 2005. The increase of
$334,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 primarily resulted from an increase in the Company's
service revenues offset by an increase in the Company’s costs related to services and selling, general and
administrative costs.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues:

HSMS

Revenues, which consist primarily of monthly rental revenues, increased approximately $1,244,000, or 9%,
for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to the same period in 2004. The increase is primarily
attributed to:

The Company continues to experience growth primarily in its existing customer base. The largest growth
continues to be as a result of an agreement with a west coast management organization, which was exe-
cuted in November 2003. The number of Personal Emergency Response Systems (“PERS™) units in service
under this agreement has substantially increased since its inception and has resulted in approximately
$335,000 more revenue in 2005 as compared to 2004,

in 2004, the Company initiated and executed a new agreement with a home healthcare agency whereby
PERS were placed online. Since inception, this accaunt has grown to approximately 1,000 subscribers and
accounted for an approximate $105,000 increase in revenue during 2005 as compared to the prior year,

In January 2005 the Company acquired the subscriber base of a company which was providing PERS services.
The acquisition of this subscriber base resulted in approximately $125,000 of revenue for the year.

The remaining increase in revenue is from the execution of other new agreements as well as maonthly fee
increases to certain subscribers. The Company anticipates that it will continue to grow its subscriber base
and corresponding revenue through its continued sales and marketing efforts.
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TBCS
The increase in revenues of approximately $1,983,000, or 36%, for the year ended December 31, 2005 as
compared to 2004 was primarily due 1o the following:

The Company experienced revenue growth within its existing telephone answering service businesses of
approximately $1,035,000, as compared to 2004. This growth is due to the execution of new agreements
with healthcare and hospital organizations as a result of new daytime communication service offerings, as
well as increases in the physician base. The Company has experienced strong growth and anticipates that
it will continue to grow this business segment with further expansion into healthcare and hospital
organizations, as evidenced by its latest agreement with a hospital organization in which the providing of
daytime services commenced in January of 2006, and to physicians through its marketing strategies.

During 2005, the Company purchased the assets of a three separate telephone answering service businesses
which resulted in additional revenue for 2005 of approximately $945,000. The acquisitions were as follows:

s [n May 2005, the Company purchased the assets Long Island Message Center, Inc. ("LIMC"), As a result
of this acquisition, the Company realized approximately $275,000 of revenue in 2005.

= In October 2005, the Company purchased the assets of North Shore Answering Service {"NSAS"). As a
result of this acquisition, the Company realized approximately $500,000 of revenue in 2005. The
Company believes the acquisition of these two entities will help facilitate its growth within the Long
Island/New York geographical area.

* In December 2005, the Company purchased the assets of Answer Connecticut, Inc. (*ACT"). As a resuit
of this acquisition, the Company realized approximately $170,000 of revenue in 2005. The Company
believes this acquisition will help facilitate its expansion into the Northeast geographical area.

Along with the plan to grow the TBCS segment through its daytime communication service offerings, the
Company intends to continue to acquire additional TBCS businesses in 2006. In March 2006, the Company
executed its latest TBCS acquisition.

Cost Related To Services and Goods Sold:

HSMS
Costs related to services and goods sold decreased by approximately $120,000 for the year ended December
31, 2005 as compared to the same period in 2004, a decrease of 2%, primarily due to the following:

The Company recorded approximately $145,000 less expense relating to the upgrade of certain versions
of its PERS and related equipment, as compared to the same period in 2004. In November 2004, the
Company received an inquiry from the Federal Communications Commission {"FCC"). In response to that
inquiry the Company determined that certain versions of its PERS equipment emit levels of radio fre-
guency energy that exceed applicable standards designed to reduce the possibility of interference with
radio communications. As a result, in 2004, the Company recognized approximately $445,000 of
expenses in connection with this matter, including the recording of a charge of $375,000 representing
the estimated cost to upgrade certain versions of its PERS eguipment to meet applicable FCC standards.
During 2005, the Company incurred costs of approximately $300,000 in connection with this matter, a
significant portion of which were incurred as a result of the Company's decision to accelerate the reme-
diation of certain effected PERS units.

The above decrease was offset to some degree by an increase during 2005 in costs incurred for general
repairs and upgrades, During 2005, in connection with a decision not to manufacture additional tele-
health devices, the Company concentrated its efforts on repairing and upgrading existing PERS units that
had been returned from the field.

T8CS:
Costs related to services and goods sold increased by approximately $1,164,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004, an increase of 41%, primarily due to the following:

With the continued increase in business in its existing telephone answering services, specifically in its new
daytime answering service offerings, the Company coentinued to hire additional telephone answering
service supervisors and operators in its Long Island City location, especially in the second half of 2005. As
a result of the Company executing an agreement with a hospital organization in the second half of 2005,
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the Company hired the appropriate personnel to be prepared to properly service this organization with its
daytime answering service offerings which commenced in January 2006. In addition, the Company initi-
ated a pay rate increase to all its supervisors and operators in an effort to stabilize employee tenure with
the Company. These personnel additions along with general pay rate increases and associated payroll
taxes has accounted for approximately $605,000 of increased costs as compared to the same period in
2004. As the Company continues to grow its customer base and revenues, it will continue to evaluate
personnel levels and determine if additional personnel are necessary.

During 2005, as discussed above, the Company purchased the assets of three separate telephone answer-
ing service businesses which resulted in additional costs related to sales for 2005 of approximately
$415,000. The costs related to the acquisitions were as follows: LIMC - $140,000; NSAS - $210,000 and
ACT - $65,000.

The Company is currently evaluating each of its operations to determine if cost efficiencies can be obtained
without negatively impacting service to its customer base.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by approximately $1,353,000 for the year ended
Decemnber 31, 2005 as compared to the same period in 2004, an increase of 15%. The increase is primarily
attributable to the following;

The Company’s legal expenses increased by approximately $240,000 as compared to the same period
in the prior year. In addition to increased costs for general corporate matters, the Company incurred
approximately $55,000 of legal expense with respect to working with the FCC to determine an action
plan to establish a timeframe to complete an upgrade program for certain PERS units which did not meet
applicable FCC standards. The Company also incurred approximately $60,000 of legal expenses related to
negotiations and the execution of an amendment to a supplier agreement.

Marketing expenses increased by approximately $185,000 due to the Company hiring additional sales
personnel to assist in the marketing of its PERS and health management offerings. In addition, increased
commissions were paid to in-house sales personnel, which are directly related to increased revenues in
2005. As the Company looks ta expand its marketing capabilities for its HSMS products, it anticipates the
hiring of additional sales personnel in 2006,

During 2004, in conjunction with the Company’s increased daytime answering service offerings and revenue
growth in the TBCS area, the Company established a separate division for personnei to train operators on an
ongoing basis. This additional personnel resulted in an increase of expense of approximately $215,000 in
2005 as compared to the prior year. The Company believes it has fully established this department and
believes it is contributing significantly to the economic leveraging of its operational infrastructure.

In connection with the HCI acquisition, the Company issued twa warrants to purchase shares of the
Company's common stock. Each warrant contained a "Put Option” giving the holder the option, under
certain circumstances, to redeem the warrants at specified prices per share, less the warrant exercise price
of $2 per share. Since inception, the Company was recording a liability for the Put Option and adjusting
it based on valuations that take into account, among other things, the current market value of the
Company’s common stock. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company recorded a reduction of
the liability of $190,000 for the one remaining warrant while during the year ended December 31, 2005, the
Company had recorded a reduction of $10,000, the amount remaining on the books at December 31, 2004,

The Company incurred approximately $300,000 of selling, general and administrative expenses as & result
of the acquisition of three telephone answering service businesses during 2005. The largest expenses
relate to salaries, including related payroll taxes, and amartization relating to customer lists and non-
compete agreements.

In connection with the FCC matter discussed above, during 2005 the Company recorded an accrual of $75,000
for a voluntary contribution that the Company expects to make in conjunction with resolving this matter.

There were other increases in selling, general and administrative expenses which arose out of the normal
course of business such as bad debt expense and depreciation, which were offset by a reduction in
amortization expense.
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Interest Expense:

Interest expense decreased by approximately $6,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared
to 2004, a decrease of 10%. The decrease was primarily due to the Company continuing to pay down its
term loan as well as fully satisfying certain of its previously executed capital leases. This was partially offset
by rising interest rates during 2005 and the Company increasing its term loan in December 2005 by
$2,550,000 for the purpose of financing its acquisition of ACT,

Other Income:

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $473,000 and
$357,000, respectively, including Relocation and Employment Assistance Program (*REAP") credits in the
approximate amounts of $392,000 and $312,000, respectively. In cannection with the relocation of certain
operations to Long Island City, New York, the Company became eligible for the REAP credit which is hased
upon the number of employees relocated to this designated REAP area. The REAP is in effect for a twelve
year period; during the first five years the Company will be refunded the full amount of the eligible credit
and, thereafter, the benefit wilt be available only as a credit against New York City income taxes. The
Company believes employee levels will remain sufficient to recognize approximately $400,000 per annum.

Income Before Provision for Income Taxes:

The Company's income before pravision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2005 was
approximately $1,798,000 as compared to $809,000 for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2004, The increase
of $989,000 in 2005 primarily resulted from an increase in the Company's service revenues partially offset
by an increase in the Company’s costs related to services and selling, general and administrative costs.

Liquidity and Capital Resources:

In May 2002, the Company entered into a credit facility arrangement for $3,000,000, which included a
term loan of $1,500,000 and a revolving credit line that permitted maximum borrowings of $1,500,000
{based on eligible receivables, as defined). in December 2005, the credit facility was amended to increase
the term loan to $3,000,000.

In March 2006, the Company obtained an additionat $2,500,000 term loan, the proceeds of which were
utitized to finance the acquisition of MD OnCall and Capitol Medical Bureau.

in December 2006, the Company obtained an additional $1,600,000 term loan, the proceeds of which were
utilized to finance the acquisition of American Mediconnect, Inc and PhoneScreen, inc.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had a credit facility of $8,600,000, which included term Ioans of
$7.100,000 and a revolving credit line that permitted maximum borrowings of $1,500,000 (based on eligi-
ble receivables, as defined). Borrowings under the term loans bear interest at either (a} LIBOR plus 2.00% or
(b) the prime rate or the federal funds effective rate plus .5%, whichever is greater, and the revolving credit
line will bear interest at either {a) LIBCR plus 1.75% or (b) the prime rate or the federal funds effective rate
plus .5%, whichever is greater. The LIBOR interest rate charge shall be adjusted in .25% intervals based on
the company’s ratio of consolidated Funded Debt to Consolidated EBITDA. The Company has the option to
choose between the two interest rate options under the amended term loan and revolving credit line.

The term loans are payable in equal monthly principal payments of $50,000, $41,667 and $26,667, respec-
tively over five years while the revolving credit line is available through May 2008. The outstanding balance on
the term loans and revolving credit line at December 31, 2006 was $6,125,000 and $750,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2006, the Company was in compliance with its loan covenants,
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The following table is a summary of contractual abligations as of December 31, 2006:

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Less than

Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years After 5 years
Revolving

Credit Line $ 750,000 $ 750,000

Debt {(a) $ 6,454,395 $ 1,527,327 $ 4,482,068 $ 445,000

Capital Leases (b) $ 113623 § 39183 § 74,440

Operating Leases {¢) $9,122,491 $1,009,714 $ 2,373,487 $ 1,463,010 $ 4,276,280
Total Contractual $16,440,509 $2,576,224 $ 7.679,995 $1,908,010 $4,276,280

Cash Obligations

(a) Debt includes the Company's aggregate term loans of $7,100,000 which mature in 2010 and 2011, as
well as loans associaied with the purchase of automaobiles.

(b} Capital lease obligations relate to the of telephone answering service equipment. These capital leases
mature in the second quarter of 2009,

{0) Operating leases include rental of facilities at various locations within the United States. These operating
leases include the rental of the Company’s call center, warehouse and the office facilities. These operat-
ing leases have various maturity dates. The Company currently leases office space from the Chairman
and principal shareholder pursuant to a lease which expires in September 2007. The Company leased a
second building from the Chairman and principal shareholder until October 2004, at which time the
Company was released from its obligation. The lease obligations include two recently executed leases
that commenced rent in April and May 2006, respectively.

The primary sources of liquidity are cash flows from operating activities. Net cash provided by operating
activities was approximately $4.2 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. During
2006, increases in cash provided by operating activities from depreciation and amortization of approximately
$3.5 million and net earnings of approximately $1.3 million were partially offset by an increase in trade
receivables of approximately $0.6 million. The compenents of depreciation and amortization primarily relate
to the purchases of the Company's traditional PERS product and the customer lists associated with the
acquisition of telephone answering service businesses. The increase in trade receivables is primarily due
to the Company consummating acquisitions in 2006 and the end of 2005 which resulted in increased
receivables of $0.5 mitlion through the normal course of business.

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $10.6 million
as compared to $8.7 miilion in the same period in 2005. The primary components of net cash used in investing
activities in 2006 were the acquisition of telephone answering service businesses and capital expenditures.
The payments towards acquisition of telephone answering service businesses were approximately $6.0
million and capital expenditures were approximately $3.6 million. Capital expenditures for 2006 primarily
relate to the continued production and purchase of the traditional PERS system as well as construction
performed on new facilities. The primary components of net cash used in investing activities in 2005 were
also the acquisition of telephone answering service businesses and capital expenditures of $5.0 and $3.0
mitlion, respectively.

Cash flows provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 were approximately
$4.6 million compared to $4.0 mitlion for the same period in 2005. The primary components of cash flow
provided by financing activities in 2006 and 2005 were proceeds received from additional borrowings and
the exercise of stock options and warrants. The proceeds from the borrowing in 2006 and 2005 were
approximately $4.9 and $3.0 million, respectively, and were primarily used for the acquisition of telephone
answering services, The proceeds from the exercise of both stock options and warrants were approximately
$0.8 and $1.9 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively,

During the next twelve months, the Company anticipates it will make capital expenditures of approximately
$2.75 — $3.25 million for the production and purchase of the traditional PERS systems and telehealth
systems, enhancements to its computer operating systems and the production of its Med-Time pill dispenser
(this includes outstanding purchase orders issued to purchase approximately $1,850,000 of the traditional
PERS systems). This amount is subject to fluctuations based on customer demand. The Company also antic-
ipates incurring approximately $0.1 - $0.3 million of costs relating to research and development of its tele-
health product and Med-Time dispenser. In July 2005, the Company entered into a technology. licensing,
development, distribution and marketing agreement with a supplier for its HSMS sector. Pursuant to this
agreement the Company anticipates expending approximately $0.3 - $0.5 million over the naxt twelve to
eighteen months.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION continued

As of December 31, 2006 the Company had approximately $0.9 million in cash and the Company’s working
capital was approximately $3.2 million. The Company believes that with its present cash and with opera-
tions of the business generating positive cash flow, this will enable it to meet its cash, working capital and
capital expenditure needs for at least the next 12 months. The Company also has a revolving credit line,
which expires in May 2008 that permits borrowings up to $1.5 million, half of which was outstanding at
December 31, 2006.

Inflation:
The levels of inflation in the general economy have not had a material affect on our Company's historical
results of operations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements:

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements that are
reasonably likely to have an impact on the Company’s current and future financial condition.

Other Factors:

On December 21, 2006, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of American Mediconnedt, Inc.
and PhoneScreen, Inc., lllinois based comparies under common ownership (collectively *AMI™). AMI is a
provider of telephone after-hour answering services primarily focused on hospitals, physicians and other
health care providers and PhoneScreen, Inc. is a provider of call center and compliance monitoring services
to hospitals, pharmaceutical companies and clinical resource organizations. The purchase price was
$2,028,830 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $1.493,730, common stock valued at $229,324 and
a future cash payment of $305,776, which is due in December 2007. In addition, for the following three
years the Company shall pay AMI an amount equal to twenty-five (25%) percent of the cash receipts
collected by the Company, excluding sales taxes, from the PhoneScreen business. The Company also
incurred professional fees of approximately $57,000. A potential exists for the payment of additional purchase
price consideration if certain thresholds concerning revenues and earnings of the acquired business are met
as of December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009.

On March 10, 2006, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of MD OnCall, a Rhode Island
based company and Capitol Medical Bureau, a Maryland based company (collectively *MD OnCall™),
providers of telephone after-hour answering services and stand-alone voice mail services. The purchase price
was $3,382.443 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $2,696,315, common stock valued at
$343,064, and future cash payments of $343,064, which was paid in full as of March 2007. The Company
also recorded finder and professional fees of approximately $181,000. A potential exists for payments of
additional purchase price consideration if certain thresholds concerning revenue and earnings of the
acquired business are met as of March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009,

On December 9, 2005, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Answer Connecticut, Inc.
(*ACT"), a Connecticut based provider of telephone after-hour answering services and stand-alone voice mail
services. The purchase price was $3,088,923 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $2,316,692, com-
mon stock valued at $154,446 and future cash payments of $617,785, which were paid as of December
2006. The Company also recorded professionat fees of approximately $62,000. A potential exists for the
payment of additional purchase price consideration if certain thresholds concerning revenue and earnings
are met as of December 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008. The threshold was not met as of December 31, 2006.

On October 3, 2005, the Company acquired substantially afl of the assets of North Shore Answering Service
("NSAS"), a Long Island, New York based provider of telephone after-hour answering services. The purchase
price was $2,719,461 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $2,175,569 and future cash payments of
$543 892, which were paid as of December 2006. The Company also recorded professional fees of approx-
imately $82,000.

On May 17, 2005, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Long Island Message Center, Inc.,
a Long Island, New York based provider of telephone after-hour answering services. The purchase price
was $397,712 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $318,170 and a future cash payment of
$79,542, which was paid in February 2006. The Company also recorded finder and professional fees of
approximately $46,000.

On Aprii 12, 2004, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of alphaCONNECT, Inc., a New

Jersey based provider of telephone after-hour answering services and stand-alone voice mail services. The
purchase price was $691,956 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $563,816 and future cash
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION continued

payments of $51,256 and $76,884 which were paid in 2005 and 2006, respectively. These future cash
payments have been paid in full. The Company also paid professional fees of $76,000. A potential existed
for the payment of additional purchase price consideration if certain thresholds concerning revenue were
met by the acquired business in 2005 and 2006; such thresholds were not met.

During 2005, the Company entered into twao operating lease agreements for additional space at its Long
Island City, New York location in order to consolidate its warehouse and distribution center and accounting
department into this location. The leases, which commenced in January 2006 and expire in March 2018, call
for minimum annual rentals of $220,000 and $115,000, respectively, and are subject to increases in accor-
dance with the term of the agreements. The Company is also responsible for the reimbursement of real
estate taxes.

On January 14, 2002, the Company entered into an operating lease agreerment for space in Long Island City,
New York in order to consolidate its HCI TBCS and PERS ERC/ Customer Service facilities. The centralization
of the ERC, Customer Service and H-LINK® OnCall operations has provided certain operating efficiencies
and allowed for continued growth of the H-LINK and PERS divisions. The fifteen (15) year lease term
commenced in April 2003. The lease calls for minimum annual rentals of $269,500, subject to a 3% annual
increase plus reimbursement for real estate taxes.

On November 1, 2001, the Company entered into a five-year Cooperative Licensing, Development, Services
and Marketing Agreement with HHN (the "HHN Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company developed,
with the assistance of HHN, a new integrated appliance combining the features of the Company’s PERS
product with HHN's technology. The agreement was amended on June 30, 2005 and includes an extension
of the initial term for an additional three years, through October 31, 2009.

Since 1983, the Company has provided Personal Emergency Response Systems ("PERS") services to the City
of New York’s Human Resources Administration Home Care Service Program (*HCSP"). The Company has
been operating since 1993 with a contract to provide HCSP with these services, which has been extended
for 1-2 year periods since 1993, the last such extension through December 31, 2006. During the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company's revenue from this contract represented 8%,
12% and 15%, respectively, of its total revenue,

In November 2002, a new Request for Proposals ("RFP") was issued by HRA to provide emergency
response services to HCSP from April 1, 2004 through March 31, 2007. After receiving notification from the
City of New York's Human Resources Administration ("HRA"} that the Company was selected as the
approved vendor under the RFP to provide PERS services to the Home Care Services Program to Medicaid
tligible individuals, the Company subsequently received notification from HRA that it canceled the RFP “in
the best interest of the City of New York." The Company was advised that the cancellation of the RFP is not
related to any performance issue or negative reflection upon the Company. Concurrently, the Company was
advised of HRA's decision to issue a new contract extension to the Company through June 2005 under the
terms of the contract that the Company has been operating under since 1993. The Company has since
received this contract extension and aiso has received subsequent extensions which go through December
31, 2006. In accordance with the original contract and consistent with previous extensions, HRA has the
right to terminate the contract without cause or "in the best interest of the City of New York" upon thirty
days written notice. HRA had also advised the Company that HRA plans to issue a new RFP with respect to
PERS services in the future. In September 20086, HRA issued a bid proposal relating to the providing of PERS
services. No decision has been rendered by HRA as of March 20, 2007.

The Company cannot determine {i) how long the current contract terms will remain in effect or (i) whether
AMAC will be the successful bidder on the bid process and if so, under what terms and conditions. While
the Company has greatly reduced its dependence on revenue from HCSP if subsequent to December 2006,
the Company does not maintain this contract, approximately 8% of the Company's revenue could be lost,
albeit over a protracted period, which could have a material adverse effect on operating results and cash
flows. The Company continues to implement a variety of operational efficiencies, as well as continuing to
enhance and diversify its other revenue sireams, to offset the impact, if any, of this occurrence.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, accounts receivable from the contract represented 9% and 11%,

respectively, of accounts receivable and medical devices in service under the contract represented approxi-
mately 14% and 17%, respectively, of medical devices.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION continued

The Company's PERS equipment is subject to approval from the Federal Communication Commission
("FCC™). In November 2004, the Company received an inquiry from the Federal Communications
Commission. In response to the inquiry, the Company has determined that certain versions of its PERS
equipment emit levels of radio frequency energy that exceed applicable standards designed to reduce the
possibility of interference with radio communications; however, this issue poses no safety or functionality
risk to subscribers.

In July 2006, the Company reached an agreement with the FCC on a corrective action plan to upgrade the
affected PERS equipment and agreed upon a voluntary contribution of $75,000. At December 31, 2005, the
Company had accrued such amount. The Agreement calls for the corrective action plan to run substantially
parallel with the normal recycling of the Company’s PERS equipment and, as such, the only additional cost
to be incurred will be the incremental cost of bringing the units into compliance with the FCC regulations.

Through December 31, 2006, the Company has expensed approximately $976,000 in connection with this
matter, of which approximately $66,000, primarily relating to costs associated with the replacement of
equipment, legal fees and other professional fees, was recorded in 2006. The Company anticipates the total
charge to complete this upgrade program to range from $1,100,000 to $1,300,000.

Projected Versus Actual Results:

The Company’s revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 of $30,794,388 exceeded the Company’s
revenue projections of $30,000,000. The Company’s net income of $1,262,529 for the year ended
December 31, 2006 exceeded the projected net income of $1,200,000.

Recent Accounting Proncuncements:

In June 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, a replacement of
APB No. 20 and SFAS No. 3. SFAS No. 154 applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle and
changes the requirements for accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle to be
applied retrospectively with all prior period financial statements presented on the new accounting principle.
SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and correction of errors made in fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2005. The Company adopted SFAS No. 154 and the adoption of this statement did not
have a material impact on the consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In Navember 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 151, inventory Costs - An Amendment of ARB No.
43, Chapter 4 ("SFAS 151"), which is the result of its effort to converge U.S. accounting standards for inven-
tories with International Accounting Standards. SFAS 151 requires idle facility expenses, freight,
handling costs, and wasted material {spoilage) costs to be recognized as current-period charges and
not included in overhead. It also requires that allocation of fixed production overhead cost to inventory
be based on normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred
during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 151 did not have a material impact
on our financial.

in July 2006, FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of
FASB Staternent No. 109" ("FIN 48") was issued, clarifying the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions.
This Interpretation requires that we recognize in our financial statements, the impact of a tax position,
if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based an the technical merits of the posi-
tion. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective as of the beginning of our 2007 fiscal year, with the cumulative
effect of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings.
The Company adapted FIN 48 as of January 2007 and the adoption of this interpretation did not have
a material impact on the consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In September 20086, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”, which defines fair value,
establishes guidelines for measuring fair value and expands disclosure regarding fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 does not require new fair value measurements but rather eliminates inconsistencies in guid-
ance found in various prior accounting pronouncements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 157
to have a material effect on our financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION continued

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin {SAB) No.
108, “Financial Statemenis — Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements”. SAB No. 108 provides interpretive guidance on how
the effects of prior year uncorrected misstatements should be considered when guantifying misstatements
in the current year financial statements. SAB No. 108 is effective for years ending after November 15, 2006.
The adoption of the provisions of SAB No. 108 did not have a material impact on the financial position or
results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities {*SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets
and liabilities at fair value. SFAS 159 also establishes presentation and disclosure reguirements designed to
facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different measurement attributes for similar types
of assets and liabilities and to provide additional information that will help investors and other financial
statement users to more easily understand the effect of the company's choice to use fair value on its earn-
ings. Finally, SFAS 159 requires entities to disptay the fair value of those assets and liabilities for which the
company has chosen 1o use fair value on the face of the balance sheet. SFAS 159 is effective as of the
beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year beginning after November 15, 2007. Early adoption is permitted as
of the beginning of the previous fiscal year provided that the entity makes that cheice in the first 120 days
of that fiscal year and also elects to apply the provisions of SFAS 157 (see above). The Company is currently
assessing the impact of SFAS 159.

Critical Accounting Policies:

In preparing the financial statements, the Company makes estimates, assumptions and judgments that can
have a significant impact on our revenue, operating income and net income, as well as on the reported
amounts of certain assets and liabilities on the balance sheet. The Company believes that the estimates,
assumptions and judgments involved in the accounting policies described below have the greatest potential
impact on its financial statements due to the materiality of the accounts involved, and therefore, considers
these to be its critical accounting policies. Estimates in each of these areas are based on hisicrical experience
and a variety of assumptions that the Company believes are appropriate. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Reserves for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable

The Company makes ongeing assumptions relating to the caollectibility of its accounts receivable.
The accounts receivable amount on the balance sheet includes a reserve for accounts that might not be
paid. In determining the amount of the reserve, the Company considers its historical level of credit losses.
The Company also makes judgments about the creditworthiness of significant customers based on ongoing
credit evaluations, and it assesses current economic trends that might impact the level of credit losses in
the future. The Company recorded reserves for uncoliectible accounts receivables of $547,000 as of
December 31, 2006, which is equal to approximately 10% of total accounts receivable. While the Company
believes that the current reserves are adequate to cover potential credit losses, it cannot predict future
changes in the financial stability of its customers and the Company cannot guarantee that its reserves will
continue 10 be adequate. For each 1% that actual credit losses exceed the reserves established, there would
be an increase in general and administrative expenses and a reducticn in reported net income of approxi-
mately $55,000. Conversely, for each 1% that actual credit losses are less than the reserve, this would
decrease the Company's general and administrative expenses and increase the reported net income by
approximately $55,000.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Depreciation for financial reporting purposes is being provided by the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. The valuation and classification of
these assets and the assignment of useful depreciable lives involves significant judgments and the use of
estimates. Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Historically, impairment losses have not been
required. Any change in the assumption of estimated useful lives cauld either result in a decrease or increase
the Companys's financial results. A decrease in estimated useful life would reduce the Company’s net income
and an increase in estimated useful life would increase the Company’s net income. If the estimated usefu!
lives of the PERS medical device were decreased by one year, the cost of goods related to services would
increase and net income would decrease by approximately $165,000. Conversely, if the estimated usefut
lives of the PERS medical device were increased by one year, the cost of goods related to services would
decrease and net income would increase by approximately $135,000.
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Valuation of Goodwiill

Pursuant to Statement of Financia! Accounting Standards No. 142, " Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, ”
goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are no longer amortized, but are subject to annual impairment
tests. To date, the Company has not been required to recognize an impairment of goodwill. The Company
tests goodwill for impairment annually or more frequently when events or circumstances occur, indicating
goodwill might be impaired. This process involves estimating fair value using discounted cash flow analyses.
Considerable management judgment is necessary to estimate discounted future cash flows. Assumptions
used for these estimated cash flows were based on a combination of historical results and current internal
forecasts. The Company cannot predict certain events that could adversely affect the reported value of
goodwill, which totaled $9,532,961 at December 31, 2006 and $6,086,428 at December 31, 2005. If the
Company were to experience a significant adverse impact on goodwill, it would negatively impact the
Company’s net income.

Accounting for Stock-Based Awards

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R,
*Share-Based Payment."” Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company had applied the intrinsic value method of
accounting for stock options granted to our employees and directors under the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, *Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations,
as permitted by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.® Accordingly, employee and
director compensation expense was recognized only for those options whose exercise price was less than
the market value of our common stack at the measurement date.

The Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123R, using the modified prospective
transition method. Under the medified prospective method, {i) compensation expense for share-based
awards granted prior to January 1, 2006 are recognized over the remaining service period using the com-
pensation cost calculated for pro forma disclosure purposes under SFAS No. 123 and (ii) compensation
expense for all share-based awards granted subsequent to December 31, 2005 are based on the grant date
fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. Results for pertods prior to January
1, 2006 have not been restated. As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R, the Company recorded a pre-tax
expense of approximately $250,000 for stock-based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2006.

The determination of fair value of share-based payment awards to employees and directors on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes model is affected by the Company’s stock price as well as assumptions regard-
ing a number of highly complex and subjective variables. These variables include, but are not limited to the
expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, and actual and projected employee stock option
exercise behaviors.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
American Medical Alert Corp. and Subsidiaries
Oceanside, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of American Medical Alert Corp. and
Subsidiaries as of December 3%, 2006 and 2005 and the related consolidated statements of income, share-
holders' equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the peried ended December 31, 2006. We have
also audited the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our respoensibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements based an our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board {United States}). Those standards require that we pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit inciudes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overail financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of American Medical Alert Corp. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the informatian set forth
therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company
adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share Based Payment.

/s/ Margolin, Winer and Evens, LLP
Garden City, New York
March 30, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2006 2005
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash $ 856,248 % 2,638,984
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $547,000 in 2006 and $451,000 in 2005) 4,920,950 4,354,744
Notes receivable 25,642 24,394
Inventory 313,851 332,323
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 860,863 684,336
Deferred income taxes 239,000 309,000
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 7,216,554 8,343,781
FIXED ASSETS-AT COST:
Medical devices 17,350,168 16,970,577
Monitoring equipment 2,864,310 2,240,484
Furniture and equipment 2,454,499 1,494,323
Construction in progress — 293,247
Leasehold improvements 1,009,178 720,583
Automobiles 275,712 258,689
23,953,867 21,977,903
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 14,645,955 14,167,245
9,307,912 7.810,658
OTHER ASSETS:
Long-term portion of notes receivable 48,071 73,713
intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization of
$3,194,677 and $2,229,045 in 2006 and 2005} 5,115,961 3,474,252
Goodwill {net of accumulated amortization of $58,868} 9,532,961 6,086,428
Other assets 1,386,286 806,504
16,083,279 10,440,897
TOTAL ASSETS $32,607,745 $26,595,336

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2006 2005
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT UABILITIES:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 1,527,327 $ 616,811
Accounts payable 805,002 1,120,269
Accounts payable-acquisitions 477,308 1,318,103
Accrued expenses 1,075,256 1,305,091
Current portion of capital lease obligations 39,183 24,082
Deferred revenue 104,515 111,428
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,028,591 4,495,784
Deferred Income Tax Liability 992,000 971,000
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Poriion 5,677,068 2,429,396
Long-Term Portion of Capital Lease Obligations 74,440 —
Customer Deposits 69,200 —
Accrued Rental Obligation 381,256 190,230
Other Liabilities 40,000 125,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,262,555 8,211,410
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES — —
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value — authorized, 1,000,000 shares;

none issued and outstanding — —
Common stock, $.01 par value - authorized, 20,000,000 shares;

Issued 9,230,086 shares in 2006 and 8,765,415 in 2005 92,302 87,654
Additionat paid-in capitai 14,591,238 12,897,151
Retained earnings 6,767,682 5,505,153

21,451,222 18,489,958
Less treasury stock, at cost (43,910 shares) (106,032) (106,032}
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 21,345,190 18,383,926
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $32,607,745 $26,595,336

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 2005 2004
REVENUE:

Services $30,406,636 $22,176,799 $18,852,925

Product sales 387,752 270,843 275,078

30,794,388 22,447,642 19,128,003

COSTS AND EXPENSES (INCOME):

Costs related to services 14,439,292 10,717,366 9,613,792

Cost of products sold 234,336 154,329 159,054

Selling, general and administrative expenses 14,172,973 10,198,082 8,845,066

Interest expense 394,613 52,638 58,184

Other income {578,355) (473,209) (356,699)

28,662,859 20,649,206 18,319,397
INCOME BEFQRE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 2,131,529 1,798,436 808,606
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 869,000 866,000 398,000
NET INCOME 1,262,529 932,436 % 410,606
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE A4 $ A1 % .05
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE A3 $ .10 $ .05
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common Stock
Number Additional

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, of Paid-In Retained Treasury
2006, 2005 and 2004 Shares Amount Capital Earnings Stock Total
Balance - January 1, 2004 7.734,486 $77,345 $9,573,863 $4,162,111 $(106,032) $13,707,287
Exercise of Stock Options 268,557 2,685 717,121 — — 719,806
Exercise of Warrants 75,000 750 284,250 — —_ 285,000
Income Tax Benefit of

Stock Option Exercised — — 155,200 — — 155,200
Net Income for the Year

Ended December 31, 2004 -— — — 410,606 — 410,606
Balance - December 31, 2004 8,078,043 $80,780 10,730,434 4.572,717 (106,032) 15,277,899
Issuance of Common Stock -

Acquisitions 25,914 259 154,187 — —_ 154,446
Exercise of Stock Options 385,008 3,850 1,072,147 — — 1,075,997
Exercise of Warrants 276,450 2,765 803,583 — — 806,348
Income Tax Benefit of

Stock QOptions Exercised — — 136,800 — — 136,800
Net Income for the Year

Ended December 31, 2005 — — — 932,436 —_ 932,436
Balance - December 31, 2005 8,765,415 $87,654 12,897,151 5,505,153 {106,032) 18,383,926
Issuance of Common Stock -

Employees 31,333 313 187,687 — —_ 188,000
Issuance of Common Stock -

Acquisitions 92,327 923 571,465 — — 572,388
Issuance of Stock Options — — 61,261 — —_ 61,261
Exercise of Stock Options 253,511 2,537 499,049 —_ — 501,586
Exercise of Warrants 87,500 875 331,625 —_ — 332,500
income Tax Benefit of

Stock Options Exercised — — 43,000 — — 43,000
Net Income for the Year

Ended December 31, 2006 — — — 1,262,529 — 1,262,529
Balance - December 31, 2006 9,230,086 $92,302 | $14,591,238 $6,767,682 $(106,032) $21,345,190

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $1,262,529 $932.,436 $410,606
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for deferred income taxes 91,000 149,000 49,000
Provision for doubtful receivables 210,795 200,675 85,000
Stock compensation charge 249,261 — —
Depreciation and amortization 3,515,262 3,061,668 3,071,424
Provision for valuation of put warrants — {10,000} {190,000)
Accrued rental cbligation 191,026 46,600 35,606
Income tax benefit from stock options exercised 43,000 136,300 155,200
Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable {626,204) (1,033,454) (158,563)
Inventory 18,472 364,413 (244,812}
Prepaid and refundable taxes — — 155,093
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (176,527) (250,279) 37,440
QOther assets — — 11.312
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (315,267) 560.816 (58,884}
Accrued expenses (208,835} 1,490 495773
Deferred revenue {6,913) 95,594 (90,575)
Other liabilities {85,000) {60,000) 261,884
MNet Cash Provided by Operating Activities 4,162,599 4,195,759 4,025,504
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments of notes receivable 24,394 23,207 22,077
Purchase of American Mediconnect, Inc. (1,550,136) — —
Purchase of MD OnCall (2,877,648} — —
| Purchase of alphaCONNECT, Inc — — (639,816)
' Purchase of LIMC — (364,100) —
Purchase of North Shore — (2,257,356) —
Purchase of Answer Cannecticut, Inc. (30,493) (2,348,332) —
Purchase — other (70,345} — —
Payments of accounts payable - acquisitions (1,489,635} (51,256) —
Expenditures for fixed assets (3,563,253) (2,983,451) {2,615,637)
{Increase) decrease in other assets {266,425) (700,252) —
Deposits on equipment and software (321,987) — —
Increase in goodwill — — (103,856)
Payment for account acquisitions and licensing agreement (438,996) (98,262) (312,489
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities {10,584,524) (8.779,802) (3,649,721)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-term debt $4,850,000 $3,000,000 $ 62,065
Repayment of long-term debt (991,812) (751,051) (357.646)
Principal paymenis under capital lease obiigations {53,084) (95,119) {90,269)
Exercise of stock options and warrants 834,085 1,882,345 1,004,806
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 4,639,189 4,036,175 618,956
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (1,782,736) (547,868) 994,739
CASH—BEGINNING CF YEAR 2,638,984 3,186,852 2,192,113
CASH—END OF YEAR $856,248 $2,638,984 $ 3,186,852
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION—
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest £ 364,702 $ 68,325 $ 58,184
Income taxes 1,542,774 211,509 104,299
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Common stock issued in connection with acquisition $ 572,388 $ 154,446 $ —
Accounts payable due sellers in connection with acquisitions 648,840 1,241,219 128,140
Long-term debt issued in connection with acquisition of PERS subscriber base 300,000 — —

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these finandial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Scope of business — The Company’s portfolio of services includes Health and Safety Monitaring Systems
("HSMS ")}, which encompasses personal emergency response systems ("PERS") and telehealth systems, tele-
phony based communication services (" TBCS") and pharmacy security monitoring systems (Safe Com). The
Company’s PERS business is to sell, rent, install, service and monitor remote communication systems with
personal security and smoke/fire detection capabilities, linked to an emergency response manitoring center.
The telehealth system has two main components; the first is a patient home monitoring appliance and the
second is a web based care management software program. TBCS provides after-hours telephone answer-
ing services as well as newly developed “Daytime Service" applications to the healthcare community. Safe
Com provides personal safety and asset monitoring to retail establishments. The Company markets its prod-
ucts primarily to institutional customers, including long-term care providers, retirement communities, hospi-
tals, and government agencies, physicians and group practices and individual consumers across the United
States.

Consolidation policy — The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
American Medical Alert Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries; together the "Company”. All material
inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Inventory valuation — nventory, consisting of finished goods held for resale and component parts, is
valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company
had reserves on certain component parts inventory aggregating approximately $23,000 and $337,000,
respectively. The reserve, which arose in 2004 ($232,000) and 2005 ($105,000), was established due to a
change in telehealth technology. During 2006, the majority of these components were discarded.

Fixed assets — Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method at rates adequate to allocate the cost
of applicable assets over their expected useful lives as follows:

Medical devices 3 -7 years
Moanitoring equipment 5 years
Furniture and egquipment 5 — 7 years
Automaobiles 3 years

Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the useful
life of the asset or the term of the lease.

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
144, " Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company reviews its fixed
assets and intangible assets with finite lives for impairment when there are indications that the carrying
amounts of these assets may not be recoverable. No impairment losses were recorded during the three-year
period ended December 31, 2006.

The Company’s PERS equipment is subject to approval from the Federal Communicaticn Commission
("FCC"). In November 2004, the Company received an inquiry from the Federal Communications
Commission. In response to the inquiry, the Company has determined that certain versions of its PERS
equipment emit levels of radio frequency energy that exceed applicable standards designed to reduce the
possibility of interference with radio communications; however, this issue poses no safety or functionality
risk to subscribers.

In July 2006, the Company reached an agreement with the FCC on a corrective action plan to upgrade the
affected PERS equipment and agreed upon a voluntary contribution of $75,000. At December 31, 2005, the
Company had accrued such amount. The Agreement calls for the corrective action plan to run substantially
paralle! with the normal recycling of the Company’s PERS equipment and, as such, the only additional cost
1o be incurred will be the incremental cost of bringing the units into compliance with the FCC regulations.

Through December 31, 2006, the Company has expensed approximately $976,000 in connection with this
matter. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 the Company recorded expenses of
approximately $66,000, $430,000 and $480,000, respectively, primarily relating to costs associated with the
replacement of equipment, legal fees and other professional fees.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Goodwill and other intangible assets — Goodwill represents the cost in excess of the fair value of the
tangible and identifiable intangible net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill and indefinite life intangible
assets are not amortized, but are subject to annual impairment tests. The Company completes the annual
impairment test during the fourth quarter. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, no evidence of impairment
existed.

Other intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the periods of expected
benefit. The Company's other intangible assets include: (a) trade accounts and trade name {collectively,
"account acquisitions ") which are amortized aver their estimated lives of three to ten years; (b) noncompete
agreements which are being amortized over their contractual lives of five years; (¢) customer lists which are
being amortized over five to seven years and (d} licensing agreement which is being amortized over the term
of the related agreement (Note 2).

Accounts receivable - Accounts receivable are reported in the balance sheet at their outstanding principal
balance net of an estimated allowance for doubtful accounts. Sales terms usually provide for payment
within 30 to 60 days of billing. An allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based upon a review of out-
standing receivables, historical collection information, and existing econemic conditions. During the years
ended December 2006, 2005 and 2004, provisions for doubtful accounts of approximately $211,000,
$200,000 and $85,000, respectively, were charged to income and included in general and administrative
expenses. Accounts receivable are charged against the aliowance when substantially all collection efforts
cease. Recoveries of accounts receivable previously charged off are recorded when received.

income taxes - The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 103, "Accounting for Income Taxes," pursuant to which deferred taxes are deter-
minad based on the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities, using
enacted tax rates, as well as any net operating loss or tax credit carryforwards expected to reduce taxes
payable in future years.

Revenue recognition — Approximately 98% of revenue is derived from contract services relating 1o two
of the Company’s segments (see Note 12}. HSMS revenue principally consists of fixed monthly charges
covering the rental of the PERS and telehealth units as well as the monitoring of the PERS at the Company’s
call center. In the TBCS and Safe Com segments, revenue is primarily derived from monthly services pursuant
to contracts. Certain TBCS customers are billed in advance on a semi-annual and annual basis. Unearned
revenue is deferred and recognized as services are rendered. None of the Company’s billings are based
on estimates.

The remainder of revenue is derived from product sales and the installation of PERS equipment. Product
sales revenue is recognized at the time of delivery, Installation revenue is billed and recognized at the time
the monitoring equipment is installed. Expenses incurred in connection with installations are also recognized
at this time. Installation services include the actual installation of the monitoring equipment, the testing of
the units and instructing the customer how to operate and use the equipment.

Research and development costs - Research and development costs, which are expensed and included in
selling, general and administrative expenses, were $240,487, $173,790 and $151,876 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Income per share - Earnings per share data for the years ended December 2006, 2005 and 2004 are
presented in conformity with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.*
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

The following table is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators in computing earnings per share:

Income Shares Per-Share
{Numeratar) (Denominatar) Amounts
2006
Basic EPS — Income available to common stockholders $1,262,529 8,948,328 $.14
Effect of dilutive securities — Options and warrants — 437,814
Diluted EPS — Income available to common
shareholders and assumed conversions 1,262,529 9,386,142 $.13
2005
Basic EPS - Income available to common shareholders $932,436 8,452,435 $.11
Effect of dilutive securities — Options and warrants — 672,470
Diluted EPS — Income available to common
shareholders and assumed conversions 932,436 9,124,905 $.10
2004
Basic EPS - Income available to common shareholders $410,606 7,903,267 $.05
Effect of dilutive securities — Options and warrants — 575,557
Diluted EPS - Income available to comman
shareholders and assumed conversicns $410,606 8,478,824 $.05

Concentration of credit risk — Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentration
of credit risk principally consist of accounts receivable from state and local government agencies. The risk is
mitigated by the Company’s procedures for extending credit, follow-up of disputes and receivable collection
procedures. In addition, the Company maintains its cash in various bank accounts that at times may exceed
federally insured limits. (See Note 11).

Reclassifications - Certain amounts in the 2005 and 2004 consolidated financial statements have been
reclassified to conform to the 2006 presentation.

Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Accounting estimates, in part, are
based upon assumptions concerning future events. Among the more significant are those that relate to col-
lectibility of accounts receivable, the estimated lives and recoverability of long-lived assets, including good-
will, and the ultimate cost to resolve the FCC matter. Accounting estimates reflect the best judgment of
management and actual results may differ from those estimates.

Fair value of financial instruments — Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, " Disclosures
about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” requires all entities to disclose the fair value of certain financial
instruments in their financial statements. The Company estimates that the fair value of its cash, accounts and
notes receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates their carrying amounts due to the
short maturity of these instruments, Substantially all long-term debt bears interest at variable rates currently
available to the Company; accordingly, their carrying amounts approximate their fair value.

Accounting for stock-based compensation - Prior to 2006, the Company followed Accounting Principles
Board Opinion {"APB") No. 25, *Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related Interpretations in
accounting for its stock-based compensation plans. Under APB No. 25, no compensation expense was rec-
ognized for stock options when the exercise price of the options equaled the market price of the stock at the
date of grant. Compensation expense was recognized on a straight-line basis for stock awards based on the
vesting period and the market price at the date of the award.

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment”
(*Statement No. 123(R)"), which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all
share-based payments to employees, including grants of stock and employee stock options, based on esti-
mated fair values. Statement No. 123(R) supersedes the Company's previous accounting under APB No. 25
for periods beginning in 2006. The Company adopted Statement No. 123(R) using the modified prospective
transition method. The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006,
reflects the impact of Statement No. 123(R). In accordance with the modified prospective transition method,
the Company's consolidated financial statements for prior periods have not been restated to reflect the
impact of Statement No. 123(R).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of
share-based payment awards that is ultimately expected to vest during the period. Stock-based compensa-
tion expense recognized in the Company's consolidated statements for the year ended December 31, 2006
includes compensation expense for share-based payment awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of
December 31, 2005 based on the grant date fair vafue estimated in accardance with the pro forma disclo-
sure provisions of Statement No. 123 and compensaticn expense for the share-based payment awards
granied subsequent to December 31, 2005 based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with
the provisions of Statement No. 123(R).

The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense, which is included in selling, general
and administrative expense, related to all share-based payments recognized in the consolidated statement
of income.

2006
Stock options $61,261
Service based awards 80,000
Performance based awards 108,000
Tax benefits (103,694)
Stack-based compensation expense, net of tax $145,567
Effect on basic and diluted earnings per share $0.02

Service Based Awards

in 2006, the Company granted 60,000 restricted shares 1o certain executives. These shares vest over periods
ranging from three to five years, on December 31 of each year. As of December 31, 2006, 12,500 shares
were vested. Fair value for restricted stock awards is based on the Company's closing common stock price
on the date of grant. The grant date fair value of restricted stock granted during the year ended December
31, 2006 was $360,000. As of December 31, 2006, the Company had $280,000 of total unrecognized
compensation costs related to unvested restricted stock expected to be recognized over a weighted average
period of 3.71 years.

Performance Based Awards

In 2006, the Company granted awards to an executive providing for the right to earn up to 90,000 shares
(up to 18,000 shares per year for the next five years) to an executive. The receipt of such shares is contin-
gent upon the Company achieving certain specified consolidated gross revenue and Earnings before
Interest and Taxes ("EBIT") objectives in each of the next five fiscal years ending December 31, The fair
value af the performance shares ($540,000) is based an the Company's closing common stock on the date
of grant and assumes that performance goals will be achieved. The fair value of the shares is expensed over
the performance period for those shares that are expected to ultimately vest. If such objectives are not met,
no compensation cost is recognized and any recognized compensation cost is reversed. As of December 31,
2006, no shares were vested. As of December 31, 2006, there was $432,000 of total unrecognized com-
pensation costs related to unvested share awards; that cost is expected to be recognized over a period of
4.00 years.

The following table illustrates pro forma net income and pro forma earnings per share as if the Company
had applied the fair value recognition provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB®)
Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation® (*Statement No. 123*), to stock-based
employee compensation in 2005 and 2004,

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004

Net income as reparted $ 932,436 $ 410,606
Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined

under fair value based method net of tax (136,055) (104,215)
Pro forma net income {loss) $ 796,381 $ 306,391
Earnings per share:

Basic - as reported $ 011 3 0.05
Basic - pro forma $ 009 3 0.04
Diluted - as reported $  06.10 $ 005
Diluted — pro forma $ C.09 $ 004

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $61,261,
$238.090 and $143,791, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

The fair value of options at date of grant was estimated by Chartered Capital Advisors, Inc. using the
Black-Scholes model with the following weighted average assumptions:

2006 2005 2004
Expected life (years) P 2 2
Risk free interest rate 4.94% 4.31% 2.83%
Expected volatility 23.26% 18.39% 22.50%

Expected dividend yield — — —

Recent accounting pronouncements — In june 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, " Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections®, a replacement of APB No. 20 and SFAS No. 3. SFAS No. 154 applies to all
voluntary changes in accounting principle and changes the requirements for accounting for and reporting of
a change in accounting principle to be applied retrospectively with all prior period financial statements pre-
sented on the new accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and correction of
errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company adopted SFAS No. 154 and
the adoption of this statement did not have a material impact on the consolidated results of operations orf
financial position.

In November 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 151, "Inventory Costs — An Amendment of ARB
No. 43, Chapter 4" ("SFAS 151%), which is the result of its effort to converge U.S. accounting standards for
inventories with International Accounting Standards. SFAS 151 requires idle facility expenses, freight,
handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage) costs to be recognized as current-period charges and not
included in overhead. It also requires that allocation of fixed production overhead cost to inventory be based
on normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred
during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 151 did not have a material impact
on the consolidated results of operations or financial pasition.

In July 2006, FASB Interpretation No. 48, *Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 109" ("FIN 48°) was issued, clarifying the accounting for uncertainty in
tax positions. This Interpretation requires that recognition in the financial statements of the impact of a tax
position, if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits
of the position. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective as of the beginning of our 2007 fiscal year, with the
cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to opening retained
earnings. The Company adopted FIN 48 as of January 2007 and the adoption of this Interpretation did not
have a material impact on the consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements®, which defines fair value,
establishes guidelines for measuring fair value and expands disclosure regarding fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 does not require new fair value measurements but rather eliminates inconsistencies in guid-
ance found in various prior accounting pronouncements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We do not expect the adoption of 5FAS No. 157
to have a material effect on our financial statements.

in September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No.
108, "Financial Statements — Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements”. SAB No. 108 provides interpretive guidance on how
the effects of prior year uncorrected misstatements should be considered when quantifying misstatements
in the current year financial statements. SAB No. 108 is effective for years ending after November 15, 2006.
The adoption of the provisions of SAB No. 108 did not have a material impact on the financial position or
results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASE issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities" ("SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets
and liabilities at fair value. SFAS 159 also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to
facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different measurement attributes for similar types
of assets and liabilities and to provide additiona! information that will help investors and other financial
statement users to more easily understand the effect of the company's choice to use fair value on its earn-
ings. Finally, SFAS 159 requires entities to display the fair value of those assets and liabilities for which the
company has chosen to use fair value on the face of the balance sheet. SFAS 139 is effective as of the
beginning of an entity's first fiscal year beginning after November 15, 2007. Early adoption is permitted as
of the beginning of the previous fiscal year provided that the entity makes that choice in the first 120 days
of that fiscal year and also elects to apply the provisions of SFAS 157 (see above). The Company is currently
assessing the impact of SFAS 159.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Gross Carrying  Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount  Amortization Amourt  Amortization

Account acquisitions $1,837,293 $1.044,976 $1,138,297 $998,226
Noncompete agreements 315,000 91,979 200,000 40,208
Customer lists 5,043,345 1,234,337 3,250,000 470,149
Licensing agreement(a) 1,115,000 823,385 1,115,000 720,462
Total $8,310.638 $3,194,677 $5.703,297 $2,225,045

(3) — Cn November 1, 2001, the Company entered into a five-year Cooperative Licensing, Development,
Services and Marketing Agreement with HHN (the "HHN Agreement") pursuant to which the Company
developed, with the assistance of HHN, a new integrated appliance combining the features of the
Company's PERS product with HHN's technology. The agreement was amended on June 30, 2005 and
includes an extension of the initial term for an additional three years, through October 31, 2009,

Amortization expense of intangible assets for the years ended December 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approx-
imately $1,014,000, $632,000 and $723,000, respectively, and annual estimated amortization, based on
the current amount of intangible assets, is as follows:

Years Ending December 31,

2007 $1,210,000
2008 1,110,000
2009 956,000
2010 793,000
2011 387,000
Thereafter 660,000

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, all of which relate to the Company's TBCS segment, for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Balance as of January 1, 2005 $ 2,563,864
Additional Goodwill 3,522,564
Balance as of December 31, 2005 6,086,428
Additional Goodwill 3,446,533
Balance as of December 31, 2006 $ 9,532,961

Additions to goodwill during 2006 include $1,160,236, $2,255,804 and $30.493 relating to the acquisi-
tions of American Mediconnect, Inc., Rhode Island Medical Bureau and Capital Medical ("MD OnCall"} and
Answer Connecticut, Inc., respectively. The 2005 additions 1o goodwill include $1,825,380, $1,466,489 and
$230,695 relating to the acquisition of Answer Connecticut, Inc., North Shore Answering Service and Long
fsland Message Center, Inc., respectively.

3. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following:
December 31,

2006 2005

Term loans - bank $6,125,000 $3,000,000
Revolving credit line - bank 750,000 -
Note payable - other 300,000 -
Auto lpans 29,395 46,207
7,204,395 3,046,207

Less current portion of long-term debt 1,627,327 616,811
$ 5,677,068 $2,429,396
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continved

Term loans payable and revolving credit line - bank - In May 2002, the Company entered into a credit
facility arrangement for $3,000,000, which included a term loan of $1,500,000 and a revolving credit line
that permitted maximum borrowings of $1,500,000 (based on eligible receivables, as defined).

In December 2005, the credit facility was amended to increase the term toan to $3,000,000. The Company
drew down the full $3,000,000 and utilized a portion of the proceeds to pay off its existing term loan of
$450,000 under the original credit facility. The term loan is now payable in equal monthly principal pay-
ments of $50,000 over five years, commencing January 2006. The revolving credit matures in May 2008.

In March 2006 and December 2006, the credit facility was amended whereby the Company obtained an
additional $2,500,000 and $1,600,000 of term loans, the proceeds of which were utilized to finance the
acquisitions of MD OnCall and American Mediconnect, Inc. These term loans are payable over five years in
equal monthly principal installments of $41,666.67 and $26,666.67, respectively. Additionally, certain of
the covenants were amended.

In December 2006, the credit facility was amended to reduce the interest rates charged by the bank such
that borrowings under the term loan will bear interest at either (a) LIBOR plus 2.00% or (b) the prime rate
or the federal funds effective rate plus .5%, whichever is greater, and the revolving credit line will bear
interest at either (a) LIBOR plus 1.75% or (b) the prime rate or the federal funds effective rate plus .5%,
whichever is greater. The LIBOR interest rate charge shall be adjusted in .25% intervals based on the
Company’s ratio of Consolidated Funded Debt to Consolidated EBITDA. The Company has the option to
choose between the two interest rate options under the amended term loan and revolving credit line.
Borrowings under the credit facility are collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company was in compliance with the financial covenants in its
loan agreement. At June 30, 2006 and March 31, 2006, the Company was not in compliance with ane of
the financial covenants in its loan agreement. The lender waived the non-compliance and entered into an
amendment to the credit facility.

Note payable - other — In December 2006, in connection with the acquisition of certain PERS accounts,
the Company executed a note in the amount of $300,000. The note is payable in twelve equal quarterly
installments of $27,515 commencing in February 2007, which includes interest at a fixed rate of 6%.

Principal payment requirements — Aggregate maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Years ending December 31,

2007 $1,527,327
2008 2,282,752
2009 1,529,316
2010 1,420,000
2011 445,000

$7,204,395

Covenants — The above agreements provide for negative and affirmative covenants including those related
to working capital and other borrowings.

4, Acquisition

On December 21, 2006, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of American Mediconnect,
Inc. and PhoneScreen, Inc., lllinois based companies under common ownership {collectively " AMI™), AMI is
a provider of telephone after-hour answering services primarily focused on hospitals, physicians and other
health care providers and PhoneScreen, Inc. is a provider of call center and compliance monitoring services
to hospitals, pharmaceutical companies and clinical resource organizations. The purchase price was
$2.028,830 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $1,493,730, common stock vatued at $229,324
and a future cash payment of $305,776, which is due in December 2007. In addition, for the following
three years the Company shall pay Seller an amount equal to twenty-five (25%}) percent of the cash
receipts collected by the Company, excluding sales taxes, from the PhoneScreen business. The Company
also incurred professional fees of approximately $57,000. A potential exists for the payment of additional
purchase price consideration if certain thresholds concerning revenue and earnings of the acquired business
are met as of December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009. The results of operations of AMI are included in the
Telephone Based Communications Services ("TBCS") segment as of the date of acquisition.
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The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition.

Fixed assets §$ 175,000
Non-compete agreement 50,000
Customer list 700,000
Goodwill 1,160,236
Cost to acquire AM! $ 2,085,236

On March 10, 2006, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of MD OnCall, a Rhode Island
based company and Capitol Medical Bureau, a Maryland based company (collectively "MD OnCall*),
providers of telephone after-hour answering services and stand-alone voice mail services. The purchase price
was $3,382,443 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $2,696,315, common stock valued at $343,064
and future cash payments of $343,064, which was patd in full as of March 2007. The Company also
recorded finder and professional fees of approximately $181,000. A potential exists for the payment of
additional purchase price consideration if certain thresholds concerning revenues and earnings of the
acquired business are met as of March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009. The results of operations of MD OnCall
are included in the TBCS segment as of the date of acquisition,

The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acguired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition.

Accounts receivable $138,798
Fixed assets 260,000
Non-compete agreement 50,000
Customer list 1,050,000
Goodwilt 2,255,804
Capital lease obligaticns {142,625}
Customer deposits (48,200)
Cost to acquire MD OnCall $3,563,777

On December 9, 2005, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Answer Connecticut, Inc.
("ACT"), a Cannecticut based provider of telephane after-hour answering services and stand-alone voice
mail services. The purchase price was $3,088,923 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $2,316,692,
common stock valued at $154,446 and future cash payments of $617.785, which were paid as of
Crecember 2006. The Company also recorded professional fees of approximately $62,000. A potential exists
for the payment of additional purchase price consideration if certain thresholds concerning revenues and
earnings of the acquired business are met as of December 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008. The threshold was not
met for 2006. The resuits of operations of ACT are included in the TBCS segment as of the date of acquisition.

The following table summarizes the {fair values of the assets acquired at the date of acquisition.

Accounts receivable $95,182
Fixed assets 150,000
Non-compete agreement 50,000
Customer list 1,000,000
Goodwill 1,855,873
Cost to acquire ACT $3,151,055

On October 3, 2005, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of North Shore Answering Service
("NSAS™"), a Long Island, New York based provider of telephone after-hour answering services. The purchase
price was $2,719,461 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $2,175,569 and future cash payments of
$543,892, which were paid as of December 2006, The Company also recorded professional fees of approx-
imately $82,000. The results of operations of NSAS are included in the TBCS segment as of the date of
acquisition.
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The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired at the date of acquisition.

Accounts receivable $24,760
Fixed assets 60,000
Non-compete agreement 50,000
Customer list 1,200,000
Goodwill 1,466,489
Cost to acquire NSAS $2,801,249

On May 17, 2005, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Long Island Message Center, Inc.,
a Long Island, New York based provider of telephone after-hour answering services. The purchase price was
$397,712 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $318,170 and a future cash payment of $79,542,
which was paid in February 2006. The Company also recorded finder and professional fees of approximately
$46,000. The results of operations of Long Island Message Center, Inc. are included in the TBCS segment as
of the date of acquisition.

The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired at the date of acquisition.

Accounts receivable $12,948
Non-compete agreement 25,000
Customer list 175,000
Goodwill 230,695
Cost to acquire Long Island Message Center, Inc. $443,643

On April 12, 2004, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of alphaCONNECT, Inc., a New
Jersey based provider of telephone after-hour answering services and stand-alone voice mail services. The
purchase price was $691,956 and consisted of an initial cash payment of $563,816 and future cash pay-
ments of $51,256 and $76,884, which were paid in 2005 and 2006, respectively. The Company also paid
professional fees of $76,000. A potential existed for the payment of additional purchase price consideration
if certain thresholds concerning revenue were met by the acquired business during 2005 and 2006; such
thresholds were not met. The results of operations of alphaCONNECT, Inc. are included in the TBCS segment
as of the date of acquisition.

The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired at the date of acquisition.

Accounts receivable $19,762
Fixed assets 25,000
Non-compete agreement 25,000
Customer list 325,000
Goodwill 373,194
Cost to acquire alphaCONNECT, Inc. $767,956

In the case of each of the acquisitions, the Company received a third party valuation from Chartered Capital
Advisors, Inc. of certain intangible assets in determining the allocation of purchase price.

The purchase price of each acquisition exceeded the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in as
much as these acquisitions were consummated to enable the Company to expand its presence in the
telephone answering service business into new regions or to strengthen its position in areas where it was
already operating. Furthermore, the acquisitions were done for the business’ future cash flows and net
earnings as opposed to solely for the identifiable tangible and intangible assets. The Company expects all
goodwill arising from the above acquisitions will be deductible for tax purposes.

Unaudited pro forma results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 as if
Long Island Message Center, North Shore Answering Service, Answer Connecticut, Inc., alphaCONNECT,
Inc., MD OnCall and American Mediconnect, Inc. had been acquired as of the beginning of 2004 follow.
The pro forma results include estimates which management believes are reasonable.

Pro forma Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Revenue $34,381,000 $32,633,000 $29,902,000

Net income 1,304,000 1,238,000 640,000
Net income per share

Basic $.15 $.14 $.08

Diluted $.14 $.13 $.07

The unaudited pro forma results of operations do not purport to represent what the Company’s results
of operations would actually have been had the acquisitions been effected for the periods presented, or to
predict the Company's results of operations for any future period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

5. Related Party Transactions

Notes receivable at December 31, 2006 and 2005 of $73.713 and $98.107, respectively, represent amounts
due from the Chairman and principal shareholder of the Company. 1n July 2002, the amount due from this
individual, plus accrued interest, was converted into a term loan, which bears interest at a rate of 5% per
annum and is payable in monthly installments of principal and interest through September 2003.

See Note 7 for other related party transactions.

6. Income Taxes
The provision (credit) for income taxes consists of the following:

Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Current:

Federal $575,000 $594,000 $163,000
State and local 203,000 123,000 186,000
778,000 717.000 349,000

Deferred:
Federal 61,000 34,000 76,000
State and local 30,000 115,000 {27,000)
91,000 149,000 43,000
Total $869,000 $866,000 $398,000

The following is a reconciliztion of the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective rate of the
provision far income taxes:

Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Statutory federal income tax rate 34% 34% 34%
State and local taxes 7 g 13
Permanent differences 1 1 1
Other (1) 4 1
Effective income tax rate 41% 48% 49%

The tax effects of significant items comprising the Company’s deferred taxes at December 31, 2006 and
2005 are as follows:

December 31, 2006 2005
Deferred tax liabilities:
Difference between book and tax bases of property $(1,184,000) $(1,079,000)
Deferred tax assets:
Reserves not currently deductible 394,000 417,000
Other 37,000 —
Total 431,000 417,000
Net deferred tax liabilities $(753,000) $(662,000)

7. Commitments

Capital leases — The Company is obligated under certain capital lease agreements for monitoring
equipment and computer software that expire on various dates through 2009. Equipment and computer
software under capital leases included in fixed assets are as follows:

December 31, 2006 2005
Monitoring equipment and software $160,000 $308,340
Less accumulated depreciation (16,000) {193,506}

$144,000 $114,834

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with
the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2006:

Years ending December 31,

2007 $45,895
2008 45,895
2009 33,359
Total minimum lease paymenits 125,149
Less amounts representing interest 11,526
Present value of net minimum lease payments 113,623
Less current portion 39,183
Obligation under capital leases, less current portion 174,440
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Operating leases — The Company rents an office facility from its Chairman and principal shareholder
pursuant to a lease, which expires in September 2007. The lease calls for minimum annual rentals, subject
to 5% annual increases, plus reimbursement for real estate taxes. The Company leased a second building
from this individual until October 2004, at which time the Company was released fram its obligation.

On January 14, 2002, the Company entered into an operating lease agreement for space in Long Island City,
New York in order to consolidate its HCI and Oceanside ERC and Customer Service facilities. The fifteen (15)
year lease term commenced in April 2003. The lease calls for minimum annual rentals of $269,500, subject
to a 3% annual increase, plus reimbursement for real estate taxes.

During 2005, the Company entered into two operating lease agreements for additional space at its Long
Island City, New York location in order to consolidate its warehouse and distribution center and accounting
department into this location. The leases, which commenced in January 2006 and expire in March 2018,
call for minimum annual rentals of $220,000 and $115,000, respectively, and are subject to increases in
accordance with the terms of the agreements. The Company is also responsible for the reimbursement of
real estate taxes.

The Company has also entered into various other operating leases for warehouse and office space in
Medford, New Jersey, Decatur, Georgia, Countryside, lllinois, Parker, Colorado and Redondo Beach,
California. Additionally, the Company has entered into operating ieases for its TBCS call center operations in
Audubon, NJ, Port Jefferson, NY, Newington, CT., Springfield, Massachusetts, Rockville, MD, Cranston,
Rhode Island and Chicago, lllinois.

Rent expense was $1,270,767 in 2006, $709,044 in 2005 and $751,941 in 2004 which includes $133,140,
$133,861 and $199,875, respectively, in connection with the above noted leases with the principal share-
holder. Rent expense includes real estate taxes of $23,174 in 2006, $17,831 in 2005 and $28,405 in 2004.

The aggregate minimum annual rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

Years ending December 31,

2007 $1.009,714
2008 795,150
2009 812,791
2010 765,546
2011 720,695
Thereafter 5,018,596

$9,122,492

Approximately 1% of the minimum annual rental commitments relate to the above noted lease with the
principal shareholder.

Employment agreements - On November 11, 2005, the Company entered into a five-year employment
agreement (which became effective January 1, 2006) with the Company's President and Chief QOperating
Officer. During the term of the agreement, the base salary will range from $240,000 to $300,000. In addi-
tion, the agreement provides for an annual stock grant and includes incentive compensation, in the form of
stock, based on the Company meeting certain operating criteria.

The Company has also entered into other emptoyment agreements with certain officers and other employ-
ees in the ordinary course of business. The aggregate annual base salaries under these agreements are as
follows:

Years ending December 31,

2007 $2,177.000
2008 1,873,000
2009 1,127,000
2010 328,000

$5,505,000

In addition, certain of these employees are entitled to receive additional compensation if certain performance
criteria are met. No additional compensation was paid during the three year period ended December 31, 2006.
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NOTES TO CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

8. Common Stock and Options

The Company has two stock option plans, the 1997 Stack Option Plan (" 1997 Plan") and the 2000 Stock
Option Plan (*2000 Plan*). The Company’s 1991 Stock Option Plan (1991 Plan"} expired in 2001,
Additionally, the Campany has a stock incentive plan, the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan.

Under the 1991 Plan, as amended, a maximum of 750,000 shares underlying stock options were available
for grant as either Incentive Stock Options or Nonstatutary Stock Options. The last options granted under
this Plan were issued in 2001 and will expire in 2006. All options under this Plan were granted at exercise
prices equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common shares at the date of grant.

Under the 1997 and 2000 Plans, a maximum of 750,000 and 1,250,000 shares underlying stock options,
respectively, may be granted. Options granted under both Plans may either be Incentive Stock Options
{"150s") or Nonqualified Stock Options.

Under the 2005 Plan, a maximum of 750,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock may be granted to
employees (including officers and directors who are employees) and non-employee directors of the
Company. No grants may be made pursuant to the 2005 Plan after June 22, 2015, The Plan provides for the
grant of (i) incentive stock options {"150s"), (i) nonqualified stock options, (i) stock awards, and {iv) stock
appreciation rights (" SARS*).

All of the Company's plans are administered by the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board of
Directors (the " Administrator”). [n general, the Administrator determines all terms for the grant of awards
under the plans. The exercise price of an ISO or SAR may not be less than the fair value of the Company's
common stock on the date of grant (110% of such fair market value for an 1SO if the optionee owns (or is
deemed to own) more than 10% of the voting power of the Company).

Information with respect to options outstanding under plans is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining  Aggregate
Number of Exercise  Contractual Intrinsic
Options Price  Term (years) Value
Balance - January 1, 2004 1,620,207 $2.68
Granted during 2004 219,330 4.31
Forfeitures/expirations during 2004 {130,135) 3.30
Exercised during 2004 {268,557) 2.66
Balance - December 31, 2004 1,440,845 2.87 477 $3,395,054
Granted during 2005 254,758 6.32
Forfeitures/expiration during 2005 (23,312} 3.01
Exercised during 2005 (385,008} 2.80
Balance - December 31, 2005 1,287,283 3.56 5.13 $3.393,074
Granted during 2006 66,000 5.37
Forfeitures/expiration during 2006 (46,954) 4.35
Exercised during 2006 (253,511) 1.97
Balance - December 31, 2006 1,052,818 $4.02 5.12 $2,805,698

At Decermber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, 1,052,818, 1,279,783 and 1,396,178 options were exercisable,
respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004 was $993,080, $1,357,957 and $494,095, respectively. At January 1, 2006 there were 7,500 non-
vested stock options outstanding. During the year ended December 31, 2006, 2,500 options vested and
5,000 options were forfeited. There are no nonvested stock options outstanding as ef December 31, 2006.
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The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted

Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Prices Qutstanding Term Price Exercisable Price
$2.00 - $3.00 359,088 4.89 $2.41 359,088 $2.41
$3.00 - $4.50 365,430 6.01 3.84 365,430 3.84
$4.50 - $6.75 303,300 4.42 592 303,300 5.92
$6.75 - 310.13 25,000 3.76 6,93 25,000 6.93
1,052,818 5.12 $4.02 1,052,818 $4.02

As of December 31, 2006, 88,909, 95,213 and 391,700 shares of common stock are available for future
grants under the 1997, 2000 and 2005 Plans, respectively.

9. Other Income

Other income for the years ended December 2006, 2005 and 2004 includes Relocation and Employment
Assistance Program (*REAP*) credits in the approximate amounts of $458,000, $392,000 and $312,000,
respectively. in connection with the relocation of certain operations to Long Island City, New York, the
Company became eligible for the REAP ¢redit which is based upon the number of employees relocated to
this designated REAP area. The REAP is in effect for a twelve year period; during the first five years the
Company will be refunded the full amount of the eligible credit and, thereafter, the benefit will be available
only as a credit against New York City income taxes.

10. Employee Savings Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) savings plan that is available to all eligible employees. Participants may elect
to defer a portion of their compensation, subject to an annua limitation provided by the Internal Revenue
Service. The Company may make matching and/or profit sharing contributions to the plan at its discretion.
The Company contributed $21,682, $21,336 and $18,707 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

11. Major Customers

Since 1983, the Company has provided Personal Emergency Response Systems ("PERS") services to the City
of New York’s Human Resources Administration Home Care Service Pragram ("HCSP"). The Company has
been operating since 1993 with a contract to provide HCSP with these services, which has been extended
for 1-2 year periods since 1993, the last such extension through December 31, 2006. During the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company's revenue from this contract represented 8%,
12% and 15%, respectively, of its total revenue.

In November 2002, a new Request far Proposals {"RFP") was issued by HRA to provide emergency response
services to HCSP from April 1, 2004 through March 31, 2007. After receiving notification from the City of
New York’s Human Resources Administration (*HRA") that the Company was selected as the approved ven-
dor under the RFP to provide PERS services to the Home Care Services Program to Medicaid Eligible individ-
wals, the Company subsequently received notification from HRA that it canceled the RFP "in the best interest
of the City of New York.” The Company was advised that the cancellation of the RFP is not related to any
performance issue or negative reflection upon the Company. Concurrently, the Company was advised of
HRAs decision to issue a new contract extension to the Company through June 2005 under the terms of the
contract that the Company has been operating under since 1993. The Company has since received this con-
tract extension and also has received subsequent extensions which go through December 31, 2006, In
accordance with the original contract and consistent with previous extensions, HRA has the right to termi-
nate the contract without cause or "in the best interest of the City of New York"* upon thirty days written
notice. In September 2006, HRA issued a bid proposal relating to the providing of PERS services. No decision
has been rendered by HRA as of March 20, 2007.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, accounts receivable from the contract represented 9% and 11%,
respectively, of accounts receivable and medical devices in service under the contract represented approxi-
mately 14% and 17%, respectively, of medical devices. Legal and other fees of approximately $90,000,
$120,000 and $120,000 relating to the contract extensions were expensed in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

12. Segment Reporting
The Company has three reportable segments, Health and Safety Monitoring Systems ("HSMS"), Telephone
Based Communication Services {"TBCS"), and Safe Com.

The table below provides a reconciliation of segment information to total consolidated information for the
years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004:

| 2006 HSMS TBCS Safe Com Consolidated
Revenue £15,497,956 $14,749,417 $547,015 $30,794,388
Interest expense 38,118 356,495 — 394,613
Depreciation and amortization 2,288,158 1,156,870 70,234 3,515,262
Income tax expense 121,121 697,919 49,960 869,000
Net income 104,869 1,057,873 99,787 1,262,529
Total assets 13,962,484 18,224,326 420,935 32,607,745
Additions to fixed assets 3,146,336 760,088 91,828 3,998,252
Additions to goodwill and intangible assets 738,996 5,354,878 — 6,093,874
2005 HSMS TBCS Safe Com Consolidated
Revenue $14,509,798 $7,470,100 $467,744 $22,447,642
Interest expense 50,953 1,685 — 52,638
Depreciation and amortization 2,467,246 527,085 67,337 3,061,668
Income tax expense 361,459 484,122 20,419 866,000
Net income 247,149 642,708 42,579 932,436
Total assets 9,742,333 16,317,278 535,725 26,595,336
Additions to fixed assets 2,729,197 402,604 61,650 3,193,451
Additions to goodwill and intangible assets 85,262 5,962,564 — 6,047,826
2004 HSMS TBCS Safe Com Consolidated
Revenue $13,265,835 $5,487,303 $374,865 $19,128,003
Interest expense 54,223 3,961 — 58,184
Depreciation and amortization 2,644,183 361,764 65,477 3,071,424
Income tax expense 77,270 304,818 15,912 398,000
Net income (loss) (216,651) 592,824 34,433 410,606
Total assets 12,028,990 6,782,836 689,190 19,501,016
Additions to fixed assets 2,208,951 374,912 56,774 2,640,637
Additions to goodwill and intangible assets 31,219 827,049 — 858,268

The accounting polices of the cperating segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies.

13. Contingencies

In addition to the FCC inquiry described in Note 1, the Company is aware of various threatened or pending
litigation claims against the Company relating to its products and services and arising in the ordinary course
of its business. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, no liability has been recorded tn the accompanying finan-
cial statements as the conditions for an accrual have not been met. The Company has given its insurance
carrier notice of such claims and the Company believes there is sufficient insurance coverage to cover any
such claims. In any eveni, the Company believes the disposition of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect an the financial condition of the Company.
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14, Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
The following information has been derived from unaudited financial statements that, in the opinion of
management, include all recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of such information.

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2006 2006 2006 2006

Revenue $7,150,211 $7,796,317 $7.784,660 $8,063,200
Gross Profit $3,701,648 $4,181,133 $4,118,535 $4,119,444
Net Income $279,767 $244,776 $279,421 $458,565
Basic EPS $0.03 $0.03 $0.03 $0.05
Diluted EPS $0.03 $0.03 $0.03 $0.04

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2005 2005 2005 2005

Revenue $5,238,570 $5,427,324 $5,495,252 $6,286,496
Gross Profit $2,742,173 $2,964,162 $2,710,653 $3,158,959
Net Income $226,499 $275,781 $202,901 $227,255
Basic EPS $0.03 $0.03 $0.02 $0.03
Diluted EPS $0.03 $0.03 $0.02 $0.02

Schedule Il
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Column B Column €  Additions Column D ColumnE

Balance at Charge to Charged to Balance
Beginning  Costs and Other at end of
of Period Expenses Accounts  Dedudions Period
{1
Year Ended December 31, 2004
Allowance for doubtful accounts $643,000 $ 85,361 fF — 3 —  $728,361
Allowance for inventory obsolescence — 232,094 — — 232,094
Year Ended December 31, 2005
Allowance for doubtful accounts 728,361 200,676 23,462  (501,728) 450,771
Allowance for inventory obsalescence 232,094 104,445 — — 336,539
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Allowance for doubtful accounts 450,771 210,795 11,706 {125,949) 547,323
Allowance for inventory obsolescence  $336,539 $ — $ — $(313,506) §23,033

(1} = Acquisitions
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